
6:00 P.M.

6:30 P.M.

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

COMMUNICATIONS

MOTIONS &
RESOLUTIONS

OF LOC
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING
July 261h,2023

6:30 P.M.

Committee of the Whole Meeting

Common Council Meeting

Beakman:
072623.1

XXXX:
072623.2

XXXX:
072623.3

Fogle:
072623.4

XXXX:
072623.5

XXXX:
072623.6

XXXX:
072623.7

XXXX:
072323.8

XXXX:
072623.9

XXXX:
072623.10

Approve Common Council minutes of
July 12,2023.

Water and Sewer System lnfrastructure

Purple Heart Dedication Service on August 6th.

Block Party - Saturday, August 12th -
Cottage Street, between Lagrange and High
Streetl2PM-gPM.

Grant permission to RFP for compost facility

Lockfest- Music and Arts - August 27th -
Lockport Main Street

Donations for family fun activity

Donations for park pavilion

Fundraiser at Short Street

WITHDRAWN

Lockport Professional ParkXXXX:
072623.11

XXXX:
072623.12

Elected official's salary change



ADJOURNMENT Beakman:
072623.13

Adjourn meeting to August gth,2023



CITY OF LOCKPORT
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS

Lockport Municipal Building

Regular Meeting
Official Record

July 26th, 2023
6:30 P.M.

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order

ROLL CALL

The following common council members answered the roil cail:
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo

INVOCATION

RECESS
Recess for public input.

072623.1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman the
minutes of the Regular Meeting of J
of Proceedings. Ayes _. Carri

uly 12, 2023 are hereby approved as printed in the Journal
ed.

FROM THE MAYOR

Appointments:
711412023 Michael E. Tucker,200 Park Ave., appointed to Water and Sewer Maintenance
Worker for the City of Lockport Water Distribution Department effective7l2112023. Said
appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rutes
and Regulations.

711412023 Jeffrey Cuillo, 20 Windsor Street, appointed to Senior Water and Sewer
Maintenance worker for the City of Lockport Water Distribution Department effective
712112023. Said appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil
Services Rules and Regulations.

711912023 Jeremy M. Antonik, 310 Church Street, appointed to Fire Hydrant Maintenance
Worker for the Water Distribution Department effective7l2112023. Said appointment is
provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules and Regulations.



FROM THE CITY CLERK

The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments.
Reviewed by the Finance Committee.

Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials)

712112023 Sarah K. Lanzo - notification that the bid proposals for the Lockport Raw Water
Pump Station Generator Purchase Specifications received on 712112023 are as follows:

Frey Electric Construction $188,000.00

712112023 Sarah K. Lanzo - notification that the bid proposals for the procurement of
Kenwood Nexedge Portable Radios and Accessories received on7121t2023 are as follows:

FM Communications, lnc. $41,514.41

Notice of Complaint:
711312023 John Public - Millar Place potholes and street sign replacement
711912023 Robert Carlin, 260 Niagara Street - tree

Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and water Distribution.

Notice of Glaim:
711012023 Glenn Hillman - Moving truck was damaged by low hanging branch on city tree.

Referred to the Corporation Counsel.

Notice of Petition: (for judgment pursuant to Article 78 of the New York State Civil Service
Laws and Rules)

611912023 - Tyler Methvin -vs- City of Lockport

MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS

072623.2
By Alderman:

Whereas the FY 2023 Capital Budget includes a proposed project for a water and
sewer master infrastructure plan to inventory the existing system and strategize a plan that
meets the needs of our community; and

Whereas the City published a request for proposal for said project on May 30,2023 and
received one completed bid by June 21,2023; and

Whereas the City has reviewed the submission and has recommended to pursue a
contract with Hunt EAS for a contract total of $165,000 and estimated $120,000 for testing and
data gathering for a grand project total of 9285,000; and

Whereas the Water and Sewer Funds ended FY 2022 with a fund balance of $3 million
and $2 million respectively; and



Whereas said fund balances are in excess of the minimum requirement amount and
can be utilized for said capital project; now therefore be it

Resolved that the Mayor is authorized to enter into the contract with Hunt EAS
(contingent on corporation counsel approval) and that funding is to be allocated from the fund
balance of both funds (split evenly) less any upcoming funding availability.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.3
By Alderman Devine:

Whereas that pursuant to their request, the Niagara County Clerk's Office is hereby
granted permission to host their Purple Heart Award Ceremony and dedication service, in
honor of the distinguished members of the United States Armed Forces who were wounded or
killed in action. Said event shalltake place on August 6,2023 at12 noon; and

Whereas a formal Purple Heart ceremony provides an opportunity to express our
gratitude, and to pay tribute to their service, and offer support to Purple Heart recipients and
their families;

Now therefore it be resolved:
1. Niagara Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of Prospect St to

Hawley Street
2. That Hawley Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of Niagara

Street to Park Avenue
3. That Park Avenue shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of Prospect

Street to the Navy Marine Club parking lot
4. The City shall provide four sets of bleachers for guests who attend the event
5. The City shall provide two City of Lockport Police Officers for help with traffic control

at the beginning and end of the event; and it is further

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is hereby
authorized and directed to arrange for delivery of barricades and bleachers to said area prior
to said event.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.4
By Alderman Fogle

Resolved that pursuant to their request, permission is hereby granted to the residents
of Cottage Street, , to barricade said street from Lagrange to High Street on July 22,2023 from
12 pm - 9 pm for a block party,

And be it further
Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution be and the same

is hereby authorized and directed to arrange for delivery of barricades, to the area prior to said
event.

Seconded by Alderman

072623.5
By Alderman

and adopted. Ayes



Whereas pursuant to Section 61 of the City of Lockport Charter the Common Council
has management and control of all real and personal property belonging to the City, and may
make such orders concerning same and leases thereof, not to exceed 99 years, as it may
deem best for the interest of the City, and

Whereas the Common Council and Mayor would like to inquire as to options regarding
the City's compost plant located at 611 W. Jackson St. as it relates to best use options of third
party and private companies for the purposes of composting and/or wastewater management,
and

Resolved that the Common Council hereby directs the City to publish a Request for
Proposal for best use of said land in its current state and be it that each proposal be accompanied
by a presentation made to the Common Council to discuss logistics and use of lands.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.6
By Alderman:

Resolved that pursuant to their request Lockport Main Street, (hereafter LMS) is hereby
granted permission to host Lockfest - Music and Arts for the Whole Family, in collaboration
with B & D Bagels on Sunday, August27,2023 from 12 pm - 7 pm at Lockview Plaza, said
event to include the following:

. Closure of Main Street to through traffic from Cottage Street to Pine Street for the
duration of the event

. Street barricades for closures delivered prior to the event

. LMS is granted access to electricity at the light posts along Main Street

. LMS is granted permission for vendors and restaurants to set up along and sevrve

. LMS is granted permission to place portable sanitation units on Main Street for this
event

. Garbage barrels delivered to the Main St. parking lot on Saturday for distribution
throughout event on Sunday

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is authorized and
directed to arrange for delivery of refuse containers and barricades to the area prior to the said
dates;

And be it further
Resolved that said permission is subject to LMS filing a certificate of insurance, covering

all of said events, with the City clerk, naming the City of Lockport as additional insured.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.7
By Alderman:

Whereas General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on them by
the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it



Resolved that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Sunrise Optimists for a donation of $600 to be used for Family Fun Night on
August 11,2023;and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
A.8510.32705 Gifts and Donation $600

Expenditures
lncrease
A.8510.54515 Special Supplies $600

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.8
By Alderman

Whereas General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on them by
the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Rotary Club of Lockport for a donation of $32,913 to be used for a pavilion
to be used in the Lower Town Loop / Market Street Bathroom (under NASPO contract 10700-
15856); and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
4.7110.32705 Gifts and Donation $32,913

Expenditures
lncrease
4.7110.52025 Building and Grounds Equipment $32,913

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.9
By Alderman

Resolved that pursuant to their request, permission is hereby granted for Short Street to be
barricaded at the corner of Short Street and Michigan Avenue for a Fundraiser for Tony
Ventura to be held on August 12,2023 from 3 PM to I PM and be it further

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks, Water Distribution be and the same is
hereby authorized and directed to arrange for the delivery of barricades to said area prior to
event.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes



By Alderman

072623.10 WITHDRAWN

072623.11
By Alderman

Whereas the owner(s) of the development commonly known as Lockport Professional
Park had challenged their property assessment against the City for successive years
beginning in 2015 through 2020; and

Whereas the City appeared and answered the suit and defended itself throughout
multiple court appearances; and

Whereas all parties reached a settlement in in 2020, which settlement became the
subject of additional motion practice in New York State Supreme Court that resulted in a court
order determining the precise amount of overpayments during the period of the lawsuits; now
be it

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund Budget is amended as follows:

Expenditures:

Decrease
4.1900.54775 Contingencies $103,297.60

lncrease:
A.1900.54765 Judgement and Claims $103,297.60

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.12
By Alderman

Elected Official's Salary change - Being prepared

072623.13 ADJOURNMENT

At 

- 

P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until
6:30 P.M., Wednesday, August 9, 2023.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

SARAH K. LANZO
City Clerk



Otrice of rhe
I\4ayor

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks plaza

Lockport, New york 14094
Phone (716) 499-6660

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
TIAYOR

Iuly 14,2023

TO: Common Council

M. Roman

under and by virtue oithe authority conferred.on me-by the charter of the city of Lockport, NewYork' I, Michette *al:ng, M;ilr;;r{d^ci,r, i;iJd appoint Michael E. rucker, 200 parkAvenue' Lockport NY 1409i d\il;d sewlr rvruini.nioce worker for the ciry of LockporrWater Distribution Departm.nt.ff.riiu, July 21, 2023.

said appointment is subject to the city of Lockport Municipal civil services Rules and Regulations.
witness by hand and the seal of the city of Locliport this l4th day of Jury 2023.

Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: M. Tucker
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



Office <>f the
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

One Locks plaza

Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439.6665
Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Romon
MAYOR

Ndayor
July 14,2023

TO: Common Council

,I{n{er and by virtue- oJthe authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M_. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Jeffrey A. Cuillo, 2b Windsor
9tre9t, Lockport NY 14094 to Senior Water *d S.r"., Maintenance Worker for the iity of
Lockport water Distribution Department effective July 21, 2023.

Said appointment is Permanent and subjeot to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.

witness by hand and the seal of the city of Lockport this 14tr'day of July 2023.

Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: J. Cuillo
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDINGQffiFee o,€ the ;"-;;;.^a*:n' m;:
phone (716) 439-6665

Fox (716) 439-6668

Michelle M, Raman
tuuyoR W

Iuly 19,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue oJthe authority confened.on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, NewYork,I, Michelle M. Roryg, Mayor of said city, dohereby appoint Jeremy M. Antonik, 3r0
lhurch Street, Lockport, NY 140-94 to Fire HyOraniluruiniJn*ce Worker for the Water DistributionDepartment effective July 21, 2023.

said appointment is Permanent and subject to the city of Lockport Muricipal civil services Rulesand Regulations. -- -----r--"!^".'^vrver v

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New york this lgth day of July ,2023.
Sincerely,

Michelle
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: J. Antonik
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



CITY OF'LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MI.INICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

S{

Office (716)439-6676
Fax (716\439-6702

Owner:

Project:

,nl€{

BID OPENING

N"rSL^u^"f Bid Opening =r"ffrltr.)l "2DB
Time: 2-lrn

--'l 't

Gontractor Name Phone Number Se+vice
fl:) /r,o.,J

Biffimount
Sotu+c

{tu" Elor{co (a^rJt',.4^ (pr. ?v"ffi1- {?o [ rc( , ood.oc) (o**Ir
(



NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE
LOCKPORT, NEW YORK

Lockport Raw Water Pump Station Generator Purchase Specifications

Sealed proposals shall be received by the undersigned at Lockport Municipal Building, One Locks
Plaza, Lockport, New York, until 2:00 P.M. on Friday, July 21r 2023 at which time and place they
will be publicly opened and read for the Lockport Raw Water Pump Station Generator Purchase
Specifications in accordance with the Plans and Specifications obtainable as described below.

Effective Friday, June 23,2023, Bid Documents can be ordered through the following web site:
www.buffalocopyplanroom.com/jobs/public. Ifyou do not have internet access or have questions on
ordering from the site, please contact The Copy Store at 716-847-6400. Bid Documents can be
picked up at The Copy Store at 49 Court Street, Buffalo, New York 14202, upon a non-refundable
fee per set. Payment can be submitted by credit card or company check/money order made payable
to The Copy Store. Bidders must be registered with The Copy Store as having obtained a complete
set of Bidding Documents. Bids submitted on copies of Bidding Documents from other sources will
not be accepted.

Bidding Documents will be shipped from The Copy Store upon request and upon receipt of an
additional non-refundable shipping charge made payable to The copy Store.

Each proposal must be accompanied by a Bid Bond or a Certified Check in the amount of Ten
Percent (10%) of the bid price.

The Common Council of the City of Lockport, New York, reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals, to consider the reputation and experience of the Bidder in making its selection; to waive
any informalities or minor deviations from the specifications; and to award the contract to other than
the lowest bidder, if for good and sufficient reasons, it is considered in the best interest ofthe City of
Lockport, to do so.

Sarah K.Lanzo
City Clerk



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY T4094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

BID OPENING

Office (716)439-6676
Fax (716)439-6702

.-€^ Q-rro '-$-^(" M-24Owner:

Project: Kenwood Nexed Radios Time:

Bid Opening:

2-o4

Contractor Name Phone Number Seruice Bid Amount

{n (orAu\,rA,*ns g<- 4G-972-Ldta (c,,0 {+L n'+.Lt(



Ctry or LocrpoRr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail: trusso@lockportny.gov

TIMRUSSO
Director of Finance

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Procurement of Kenwood Nexedge Portable Radios and Accessories

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the services above will be received and considered by the
City of Lockport up to 2 pm on July 21st at the office of the City Clerk, municipal building, One Locks Plaza

Lockport NY, 14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the scope of work.

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at7L6439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.eov with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserues the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and
experience of the Proposal in making its selectlon; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the
proposal form, and to award to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered
in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the
preparation of RFP(s).

Original Publish Date: June 19,2023
Edited on7 /LU2023 to extend due date due to no bids being received.



Thank you for your interest in this project. lf you have any questions or require additional information,
please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.eov.

J



CI

1914 Colvin Blvd.
Tonawanda, NY 14150-6995

Phone: (716)832-2026
www.fmcommunications.com

www.facebook. com/fmcommu nlcationsinc

Page 1

SALES

QUOTATION
112002033

Blll To:

LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

Vehicle #:

E#:
Order Status:

PT69525

71 NX-3320K

Shlp To:

LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

71

71

71

KRA.23M

KN8-551

KSC-25LSK

P.O. #:

KENWOOD NEXEDGE PORTABLE, 4OO-520 MHZ,
5W 260 CHANNEL, NO DTSPLAY
NON KEYPAD MODEL

ANTENNA, 45O49OMHZ, PORTABLE

BATTERY 148OMAH, LI-ION

CHARGER, RAPID RATE, KNB-55U57U4OLC/68
ONLY

458.64 32,563.44

Subtotal:
Tax:
TotalQuote

14.60

56.21

55.26

1,036.60

3,990.91

3,923.46

$41,514.41
$0.00

$41,514.41

Thank you for the opportunity to quote the above items. Please do not
hesitate to call, fax, or e-mail any additional questions or concems.

lf requested to drill holes into a fixture (headlight, taillight, housing, etc.), we
do not wananty any issues that may arise from making these modifications.

Quote valid for 60 days

Customer approval needed prior to work perform"O.

lt

Date: 05/09/2023 Customer Rep: Jodi Haynes Terms: NET 30 DAYS

otv Item Description Unit Price Extended



Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Emily,

Can you add these comments to the potholes email this week?

Thank you,
Sarah

lnfo@lockportny.gov
Thursday, July 13, 202310:21 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'
FW: [EXTERNAL] New submission from Contact Page

From: info@ lockpo rtny.gov <info@lockportny.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July LL,2023 11:18 PM

To: info@ lockportny.gov
Subject: IEXTERNAL] New submission from Contact Page

DISCLA]MER DISCLATMER

Computer viruses and malware can be transmitted via emaj-l-. The reciplent
shouLd check this email- and any attachments for the presence of viruses or
malware.

The server administrator accepts no liability for any darnage caused by any
virus or malware transmitted by this emai1. E-mail- transmission cannot be
guaranteed to be secure or error-free as information could be intercepted,
corrupted, 1ost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses or
mal-ware.

1

John Public

Millar Place
Lockport, New York 14094
United States
Map lt

(716) 555-1212

fi llpotholes@omail.com

Please look into filling the numerous potholes on Millar Place.

Secondarily, replace the existing street slgns to the correct name, from. Millar St to Millar Place



Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

lnfo@lockportny.gov
Wednesday, July 19,2023 10:07 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'; 'Jennifer Wochna'
FW: [EXTERNAL] Tree removal

See below, for list

From: Robert Carlin <carlrb88@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 18,2023 12:31 AM
To: info @ lockportny.gov
Subject: IEXTERNAL] Tree removal

Can we please have the tree in front of 260 Niagara Street removed before it falls and does serious damage. I
have seen trees near me be removed even though they were not in as bad shape. I know the person requesting
was a former assemblyman but he will also lose power when this tree comes down. Thank you.

Sent on my Samsung Galaxy A51
Get Outlook for Android



Ua,Lm

July 10th 2023

To whom it may concern,

On July I't 20231 was driving a Penske moving truck to move to my new house in the City of
Lockport. I was driving down Prospect Road and turned right onto Washington where the second tree
on the right had a very low hanging branch that ended up clipping the top passenger side of the moving
truck. The tree branch caught on the truck and ripped the tree pulling down multiple branches and an
electrical wire causing damage to the truck.

According to Lockport city code 176-9 it clearly states that "Trees on any lot or land adjacent to
any public highway or public place and having branches projecting into the public high-way or place
shall, under the supervision of the Superintendent of Parks, be kept trimmed by the owner or owners or
occupant of the property on which such trees are growing so that the lowest branches shall not be less
than 15 feet from the ground."

The moving truck I was driving had a clearance level lower than that of the city code and should
not have come into contact with the branch. The tree in question is part of the city tree inventory list
located under site lD 426.

The city police were called where an ambulance and firetruck also arrived at the scene.
Neighbors along the street came out of their houses and saw the damage. Multiple witnesses stated
that they have been reaching out to the city of Lockport to have these trees trimmed and have been put
on a wait list that they claim has been years.

I am looking to discuss this matter with the intent to have the City of Lockport cover the cost of
any damage involving property, physicaland emotionaland move to have the accident removed from
my record.

Please let me know any further information that may be needed.
You may reach me at either my cell phone 716-534-4008 or email slennhillman@vmail.com
Looking forward to hearing from someone soon regarding this matter.

Thank you

Glenn Hillman

RECEIVED

JUL 1 3 2023

D

CITY CLERK OFFICE



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. E1801?5/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF I 06/1,9/2023

TYLER METHVIN
1297 Norwood Drive
Lockport, New York 14094,

STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: MAGARA COUNTY

SUMMONS

Index No.:
Plaintffi

v Plaintiff Demands a Trial
By Jury of All Issues

CITY OF LOCKPORT
One Locks Plazn
Lockport, New York 14094,

Defendant.

TO TIIE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANT:

YOU ARE HERBY SUMMONED, to answerthe complaint in this actiono and to serve a

copy of your answer, or, if the summons is not served with a complaint, to serve a notice of

appearance, on the Plaintiff s attorney within twenty (20) days after service of this summons,

exclusive of the day of service, or within thhty (30) days after complefion of service where service

is made in any other manner than by personal delivery within the State. In case of your failure to

appear or answer, judgment will be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the

complaint.

Niagara County is designated as the place of trial based upon the residence of both the

Plaintiff and the Defendant.

1-of7



NIAGARA INDEX NO. Er-80r-?5/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/1,9/2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. ].

DATED: June 19,2023
Williamsville, New York

By
CHRISTINA M.
The Kantor Gullo Law Firm, PLLC
Attorneys for the P laintiff
348 Hanis Hill, Suite A
Williamsville, New York 14221
Phone: (716)626-04A4
Fax: (716) 626-0412
cgullo@kantorgullolaw.com (Not For Service)

2

2of7



NIAGARAILED
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. E180175/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/L9/2023

STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: NIAGARA COUNTY

TYLER METHVIN,

Plaintifi)

VERIFIED COMPLAINT

Index No.:
v

CITY OF LOCKPORT,
P laintiff Demands a Trial
By Jury of All Issues

Defendant.

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, by and through his attomeys, The

Kantor Gullo Law Firm, as for his Verified Complaint against the Defendant, CITY OF

LOCKPORT, states as follows:

1. At all times hereinafter mentioned, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, was and still

is a resident of the County ofNiagara, and State of New York.

2. At all times mentioned herein, the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, was and is

a duly orgapized and constituted municipal entity and governmental subdivision of the State of

New York, with main offices located in the County of Niagara, State of New York.

3. That upon information and belief the incident giving rise to this claim occurred on

or about the 25th day of October,2022, at approximately I 1:40 a.m., at or near the Market Street

and Exchange Street Intersection, in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, and State of New

York, property that, upon information and belief, is owned, sponsored, inspected, maintained,

inspected, studied and patrolled by the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPOR! their agents, servants,

and/or employees.

4. On or about November 28, 2022, a Verified Notice of Intention to File a Claim was

filed against the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT.

3of7



I
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO . F.78 0L'7 5 / 2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06 /L9 /2023

5. The Verified Notice of Intention to File a Claim was served within ninety (90) days

after the cause of action in this matter accrued.

6. A hearing was conducted by the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, pursuant to

General Municipal Law 50-h, on February 17,2023.

7. Thirty (30) days have elapsed since that claim has been filed, and the claim has not

been adjusted to resolution.

8. This action was timely commenced within one year and ninety days (1 year and 90

days) after the cause ofaction herein accrued.

9. The claim of TYLER METIIVIN is for personal injuries and damages, including

but not limited to: past and future lost wages, past and future medical expenses, past and future

pain, past and future suffering, and disfigurement.

1 0. On or about October 25, 2022, at approximately I I :40 a.m., the Plaintiff, TYLER

METHVIN, while driving his 2019 Harley Davidson Motorcycle, bearing the New York license

plate number: 49lAH3, eastbound on Market Street, brought his vehicle to a complete stop behind

a stop sign at Market Street's intersection with Exchange Street. After bringing his motorcycle to

a complete stop at the intersection of Market Street and Exchange Street, which was controlled by

a newly implemented four-way stop, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, was broadsided and struck

hy a motor vehicle owned and operated bv Dale R. Smith. who was haveling northbound on

Exchange Street and failed to stop at the stop sign controlling the subject intersection.

11. Upon information and belief, the intersection of Market Street and Exchange Street

in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, and State of New York was recently changed from an

intersection controlled by a traffic control signal/light to a four-way stop, following a meeting of

the traffic advisory meeting on October 17,2022 which resulted from a number of prior collisions

2

4of7



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

TNDEX NO. E1801?5/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/19/2023

occurring at the subject intersection. This change was implemented without any signage present

to warn the public of said new traffic pattem.

12. Moreover, upon information and belief, the intersection of Market Street and

Exchange Street in the City of Lockport, County ofNiagara, and State ofNew York is only several

yards from a second-traffic light located on Exchange Street where it crosses the canal, whose

traffic light has a known history of causing confusion to motorists, resulting in a number of prior

collisions at the subject intersection.

13. Upon information and belief, the Defendant has prior notice of the dangers of the

subject intersection, which has resulted in a number of collisions similar to that of the Plaintiffs,

involving motorists who fail to stop at the intersection and collide with other motorists.

14. As a result, the Plaintifl TYLER METHVIN, sustained severe personal injuries

due to the negligence, recklessness, and carelessness in the acts, or omissions to act, by the

Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, their agents, servants, and/or employees, for their: (l) failure

to properly study the road; (2) failure to properly guard; (3) failure to properly warn; (4) failure to

properly address prior complaints; (5) failure to properly inspect, maintain, repair, study, post and

patrol the roadway markings and signs; and (6) violation of the Defendant's special duty and/or

proprietary functions.

15. The accident and iqiuries to Plaintiff. TYLER METHVIN. resulted from the

negligence, recklessness, and carelessness in the actso or omissions to act, by the Defendant, CITY

OF LOCKPORT, their agents, servants, and/or employees, without any negligence on the part of

the Plaintiff contributing hereto.

L6. The subject occurrence was reported to the local Police Department, and emergency

reports were filed with them.

Ĵ

5of7



I NIAGARA 2
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. E1801?5/2O23

RECETVED NYSCEF ; 06/79 /2023

17. As a result of the aforementioned, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, sustained

injuries and/or aggravated and exacerbated injuries including but not limited to: a right, acute,

transverse, comminuted midshaft tibia and fibula fracture with displacement requiring surgery and

corresponding scarring and disfigurement; and pressure ulcers on his occiput, sacrum/coccyx,

ischial tuberosity, and heel.

18. As a result of the serious injuries sustained by the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN,

the Plaintiff has and will suffer past and future medical expenses; past and future pain and

suffering; inability to work; inability to perform household duties; inability to perform normal

activities of daily living; susceptibility to future injury; disfigurement; and will sufler additional

damages into the future.

19. The amount of damages in this claim exceeds the jurisdictional limits of all lower

courts that would otherwise have jurisdiction.

20. That the Plaintiff, TYLER METI{VIN, demands a trial by jury of all issues.

WHEREFOR"E, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, demands judgment against the

Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, in an amount to be determined by a jury upon hial of this

action, together with the costs and disbursements of the action, with any and all further relief as

this court deems just and proper.

Dated: Iune 19.2023
Williamsville, New York

By:
CHRTSTINA M. GULLO, ESQ.
The Kantor Gullo Law Firm, PLLC
Attorneys for the Plaintiff
348 Harris Hill, Suite A
Williamsville, New Y ork I 4221
Phone: (716)626-0404

4

601 I



I NIAGARA
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

INDEX NO. 8L8O1"'75/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF I 06/A9/2023

VERIF'ICATION

The Plaintiff TYLER METIIVIN, being duly sworn" deposes and says: that he has read the foregoing
Verified Complaint and knows its contents; the same is true to his own knowledge, except as to those
matters therein as stated to be alleged on information and belief, and as to those matters he believes
to be true.

TYLERMETHVIN

Subscribed
This6tay

and swom to before
of ,-Jnr,r- ,2023.

Notary Public

nENff t. illeno
NO!iNY PUBIIC.SIATE OF NEW YOPr

No. 0t t{16239982
Qusfited ln Nlogoro Cornlyl

trry comntrton lrptror IA I t ilA<

5

7of7



L

Crry or Locrponr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(716) 43e-6631
E-rnail : trusso@lockpoftny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Water and Sewer Master lnfrastructure Plan

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the services above will be received and considered by the
City of Lockport up to 2 pm on June 21st at the office of the City Cler( municipal building, One Locks Plaza
Lockport NY,14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the scope of work.

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at776-439-6776 or city.clerk@lockportny.gov with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and
experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the
proposal form, and to award to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered
in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the
preparation of RFP(s).

Publish Date: May 30,2023



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Master lnfrastructure Plan for City Water and Sewer lnfrastructure

lntroduction:

The City of Lockpoft, NY, is a small community located in western New York State, with a population of
approximately 20,000 people. The city has a rich history, dating back to the 19th century when it was a

major industrial hub, with significant manufacturing and transportation industries. Today, Lockport is a mix
of residential and commercial areas, with a unique character and charm that attracts visitors from all over.

One of the significant challenges facing the City of Lockport is its aging water and sewer infrastructure. Like
many other communities in the United States, Lockport's water and sewer systems are outdated and
require significant investment to maintain and upgrade. The city's infrastructure is subject to various issues,
such as pipe failures, leaks, and inadequate capacity, which can pose health hazards and disrupt the lives of
residents. Given the essential role that water and sewer systems play in the daily lives of residents, it is
crucial to address these issues and develop a comprehensive plan to ensure that Lockport's infrastructure
can meet the needs of its diverse population.

To address the challenges facing Lockport's water and sewer infrastructure, the City is seeking proposals for
a Master lnfrastructure Plan. This plan willtake into account the unique geographic, economic, and
demographic factors of the City and develop a roadmap for addressing current and future challenges. A
comprehensive plan can help ensure that Lockport's water and sewer systems are efficient, reliable, and
meet the needs of its residents for years to come. The development of a Master lnfrastructure Plan is an

essential step in maintaining and upgrading the City's infrastructure and supporting the continued growth
and development of the community.

Scope of Work:

The selected firm will be responsible for conducting a thorough analysis of the City's water and sewer
infrastructu re, includ ing:

A comprehensive assessment of the condition of the existing water and sewer infrastructure,
including pipes, pumps, valves, and other components.
An evaluation of the capacity of the existing water and sewer systems to meet current and
future demand.

An analysis of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with
state and federal regulations.

ldentification of areas of concern, such as areas with high levels of water loss or sewer backups,
and an analysis ofthe causes ofthese issues.

ldentification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements.

a

a

a

a

a

2



The selected firm will be required to develop a Master lnfrastructure Plan that includes the following

A detailed assessment of the existing water and sewer infrastructure, including a description of
the condition ofthe infrastructure and areas of concern,

Recommendations for improvements to the water and sewer systems, including a prioritized list

of projects and estimated costs.

A review of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations, including any recommended
updates.

ldentification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements, including grant

opportunities and financing options.

A detailed implementation plan for recommended improvements, including a timeline and
estimated costs for each project.

Deliverables:

The selected firm will be required to submit a final report that includes the following:

A detailed assessment of the existing water and sewer infrastructure, including a description of
the condition ofthe infrastructure and areas of concern.

Recommendations for improvements to the water and sewer systems, including a prioritized list

of projects and estimated costs.

A review of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations, including any recommended
updates.

ldentification of potentialfunding sources for recommended improvements, including grant

opportunities and financing options.

A detailed implementation plan for recommended improvements, including a timeline and

estimated costs for each project.

A summary of the key findings and recommendations of the Master lnfrastructure Plan, suitable
for public dissemination.

Proposal Requirements:

Proposals should include the following:

o A description of the firm's qualifications and experience conducting similar studies.
r A proposed timeline for completing the Master lnfrastructure Plan, including key milestones
o A detailed scope of work, including a description of the methodology that will be used to

develop the Master lnfrastructure Plan.

o A proposed budget for the project, including all costs associated with the project.
o A list of references from similar projects.

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

J



Proposal Submission:

Proposals should be submitted in paperformat to the City of Lockport, NY, by the deadline of June 2I,2023
at 2 pm. Proposals should be addressed to:

City of Lockport, NY

Attn: Master lnfrastructure Plan RFP

1 Locks Plaza

Lockport, NY 14094

A digital version of the submission should also be electronically emailed to the City Clerk at
city. clerk@ lockportny, gov.

Evaluation Criteria:

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria:

r Qualifications and experience of the firm and its team members.
r Proposed methodology and scope of work.
o Proposed timeline for completing the Master lnfrastructure Plan.
o Proposed budget and cost-effectiveness.
r References from similar projects.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularities or
informalities in the proposal process.

A committee will be appointed by the Mayor that will evaluated the submissions. Please note that this RFP

does not obligate the City to select a bidder or accept a bid at this time or any time in the future. The City
can at its sole discretion revise the requirement, scope, and selections process for this RFP at any time.

Thank you for your interest in this project. lf you have any questions or require additional information,
please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo aL776-439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.sov.

4



Gity of Lockport
Water & Sewer
Master In frastructure Plan

4 Commercial Street I Suite 300 | Rochesteri NY 14,614
Phone: 585.327.7950 | Fax: 585.327.7949 | Web: www.hunt-eas.com

Water Systems Engineering Services
Timothy Steed, PE
Principal-in-Charge

lwe 21,2A23



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

HUN It.cINIrIiRs r 
^ 

RCrirrncrs r suRVD'.RS



02

o1
COVER LETTER

o3
SCOPE OF WORK &
METHODTOGY

Scope of Work Understanding
Planning Approach

o5
REFERENCES

EXPERIENCE &
QUATIFICATIONS

o4

HUNT & King Firm Profiles
Organizational Chart
'I'eam Resumes

Engineering Service.s

Project Examples

BUDGET & COSTS
Fee & Schedule Page

H U N T TNGTNETRs r ARcHrrLcrs r suRvryoRs Table of Contents



This Pagfe lntentionally Left Blank

H U \tl T rNcrN-rriRs r 
^ 

Rcrr rrnc'rs r suRVnyoRs



Water &
u,.',:.,j City

Iune 21,2023

City Clerk, Sarah Lanzo
City of Lockport, NY
Attn: Master Infrastructure Plan RFP
1 Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

RE: Master Plan for City Water & Sewer Infrastructure

Dear Sarah and Team:

On behalf of Hunt Engineers, Architects, Land Surveyors, and Landscape Architect, DPC (HUNT), I am pleased to
submit a response to your Request for Proposal (RFP) for Engineering Services for the City of Lockp ort's Master Plan

-for Cill Water 6 Sewer Infrastructure. Being a full-service firm, we are able to cornplete the scope of work efficiently and
expeditiousll'with our High Falls' office aud the rest of our 180 employees workirrg together. Furthermore, in anticipation
of future funding requirement for MWBE participation, we have partnered with Lockport's own Susan King Pope o{ King
Consulting Engineers 6 Land Surveyors, PC. Susan's longstanding engineering professionalisn aud familiariiy r.r'ith the
Lockport system will be an enormous asset in for project success. Our two teams together are more than capable to surpass
your expectations.

Scope of Work, Understanding
The HUNT Team fully understands the Scope of Seruices as outlined in the RFE as well as outlined during our preliminary
conversations and tour with City Engineer Steven Pump and Bob Lawson. Specifcally, HUNT recognizes that..."Lockport\
water and sewer systems are outdated and require signifcant inyeshnent to maintain and upgrade. The city\ infrastricture is
subject to various issues, xrch as pipe foilures, leaks, and inadequate capacity, which can pose health hazards and disrupt the
lives ofresidents".

Comprised by a rnulti-faceted team of engineers and design professionals with extensive experience in developing lasting
water and sewer system improvements, HUNT u'ill work closely r.r'ith the City to provide a iull range of engineering
services, including: 1) a preliminary assessment of existing conditions and the systems' capacity to "meet current arid
future demand";2) an analysis of the City's compliance with state and federal regulations; and, 3) framed within the Master
Plan itsell the creation ofa prioritized, multi-year improvement plan propelled by'grant opportunities and financing
options". HUNT's strength in performitrg infrastructure and asset management analysis and the subsequent creation of
multi-year plans is a hallmark of our firrl's SO-year history.

Master Planning -- from "Study through Funding", A HUNT Differentiator
In considering our Lockport team members, references, and project approach, we returned several times to the need
to highlight our ability to take client partners like Lockport from "study through funding'i That capacity - systematic
infrastructure and facility analysis, prioritization of tasks within the Master Plan, and assisting in grants and funding eforts
- has been positively received and wiclely praised by our most recent clients at Bloom{ield, Canclor, Romulus, Napiei, ancl
Olean. Wt would proudly bring that same exhaustive and comprehensive approach to bear on behalf of Lockport. It is a
"holistic" process that takes into account roadways, SWPPPs, sanitary & stormwater systems, etc...

HIINT Team
HUNT's ability to assist Lockport was recently bolstered by the addition to our team of Nick Bayer, PE. Nicks water
collection expertise nicely complements Project Manager Bryan White, PE s r,vater-system strengths. They understaud
T,ockport's desire to focus on distribution (water) and collection (sanitary and storm) systems, and their perspectives are
clearly expressed in the Project Approach below.

H U ll T TNGINIiF.RS r AR(ir r'r1crs r suRVryoRs
1 4 Conrmcrcial Strcct I Suitc 300 | Rochcstcr, NY 14614

Phorre: 585.327.7950 | Fax: 585.327.7949 | \,Veb: www.hunr-eas.com



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U lrl T rNGrNrnRs I ARclr.r'F.crs r suRVryoRs
2



As Principal-in-Charge, I'll be pleased to coordinate the following full-service team members: Tammy Kunzman (Grant
Writing); Tomas Klaseus, PE and Harley Connelly (Water Systems); Steven Hall (GIS and Hydraulic Modelling); Ben
Wolfling, PE (Water and Sewer Design); Andy Kinsley, PE (Roadways); and Greg Barr, PE (MEP/HVAC) ....Moreover,
I can ensure Lockport that the Master Planning team will have all the necessary scheduling, personnel, and financial
resources needed to make the Infrastructure Master Plan process a short- AND long-term success.

HUNT'S High Falls, Rochester office is located within an easy drive of Lockport making easy our evaluation and any
meeting coordination. HUNT has recentlybeen involved with significant water projects within the municipalities of Penn
Yan, Honeoye Falls, Erie and Ontario Counties, as well as recent CDBG studies for the City of Salamanca and the Town of
Bath which directly address water and sewer concerns.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to a partnership with the City. Please feel free to
contact me at (607) 358-1000 x1063, or by email at SteeilT@HUNT-EAS.con , so I can make the team available to address
any questions. In addition, we would be happy to have you reach out to our references to confirm our ability to exceed your
expectations.

Sincerely,
Architects, Land Surveyors & Landscape Architect, DPC

F
Principal-in-Charge

H U N T -NGINnnRs r ARcHrrrlcrs r suRvnyoRs
3 4 Commercial Street I Suite 300 | Rochestet NY 14614

Phone: 585.327J950 | Fai: 585,327.7949 lWeb: wwwhunt-eas.com



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H Ul.VTrNGrN'nRs rAR.*I'ri(; r s rsuRVryoRs
4



Hunt Engineers, Architects & Lan rYeyo

L! unt Engineers, Architects,
fILand Surveyors & Landscape
Architect, DPG (dba HUNT) has
its headquarters in Horseheads, New
York, and currentlyhas 12 licensed
professionals, our Director of Finance,
and our Director of Technology
as stockholders. Celebrating over
50 years in business, the firm
specializes in consulting and design
for educational, institutional, and
private sector facilities (architecture
and building systems, interior design,
campus amenities, and athletic fields),
municipal infrastructure (water and
wastewater systems, storm water
management), state, county, and
local transportation facilities, and
technology consulting and design.

www.hunt-eas.com

Horseheads, NY (D

Towanda, PA O

Rochester, NY

Albany, NY O

O Binghamton, NY

251 New Karner Road
Albany, NY 12205
p: (607) 798-8081
f: (607) 798-8186

143 Court Street
Binghamton, NY 13901

p: (607) 798-8081
f: (607) 7e8-8186

Airport Corporate Park
100 Hunt Center
Horseheads, NY 14845

p: (607) 3s8-1000
f: (607) 3s8-1800

4 Commercial Street
Suite 300

Rochestet NY 14614
p: (s8s) 327-7es0
f: (s8s) 327-794e

Progress Plaza

1 Elizabeth Street
Suite 12

Towanda, PA 18848
p: (s70) 26s-4868
f: (s70) 26s-4872

H U l.',1 T tNGrNrnRs r 

^RcHrrrcrs 
r suRVryoRs CompanyProfile

5



w?
I il lt]!
II

X 
't

:11 It

ts
Bob Hunt and
Newt Gowdy
form the initial
partnership that
endures today.

IIUNT purchases
Connell & Hersh
Architects of
Corning, adding
architecture to
its srirvey and
engineering
services.

The purchase
of Flasenauer &
Sovie Consulting
Engineers of
Canadaigua
moves HUNT
into the Rochester
market, where it
continues to have
a strong presence.

The purchase
of two firms in
Williamsport,
PA, adds clients
and personnel to
HUNT's roster.

Following the
purchase of FM
Technologies,
15 employees
begin work at
IIUNT's offices
at the Gorsline
Building in
Rochestcr's
historic High
Falls District.

IOO HUNT
staffmembers
move into the
new 18,000 SF

facility on Daniel
Zenker Drive in
Horseheads, NY.

Bob Hunt retires,
and f)an Bower,
|ohn Cake and
Chuck Franzese
assume ownership
of the firm.

IIUNT expands
again as its
Towanda, PA
office opens to
bctter service
Northern Tier
clients.

I
HUNT's growth
continues as its
staffr:eachcs 100
professionals
and support
personnel.

rffiiI trrtt, 
HUNIU'O.'

HUNT celebrates 50 years
of serving its clier, ts
and acquires Shumaker
Consulting, Engineering, &
Land Sulvef ing. Expaldilg
geographic outreach with
offices in Binghamton, NY
and Albany, NY.

i-IUNT celebrates
40 years of
serving its clients.

To allorv a percentage of
non-licensed staff to hold
ownership o[ the firrn,
HUNT oflicially changed
its form ofcorporation
and name to Hunt
Engineers, Architects,
Land Surveyors &
Landscape Architect, DPC.

Dan Bower, John Cake
and Chuck -rranzese step
down from the Board of
I)ir:ectors, and leaders in
other areas transitioned
into the new HUNT BOD,
including Chris Bond as

President and CEO, Greg
Barr and Darin Rathbun
as Vice Pre sidents, Tim
Steed as Corporate
Secretary, and Dean
Hackett ancl |eff Robbins.

&ss

€

Firm
History
Since L973

Today, HUNT
has developed into a
multidisciplinary design firm
including l4 shareholders and
l4 associates. HUNT continues
to strengthen its reputation
as a premier provider of
professional services within the
rnany disciplines encorrrpassing
engineering, architecture, and
surveying. The firm's cliversified
portfolio includes projects of
varying sizes across the public
and private sectors.

H LJ [\ T rN G r N r]F.R s r A R (; r r r r n cr s r su RV riyo Rs Company Profile
6



I
t

1

tll!
ll rg

Staffing Level
187 Employees, 10 Seasonal Construction Inspectors

Licensed Professionals
57 (Zg Engineers, 14 Architects, 4 Landscape Archite cts,7 Surveyors,

2 Geologists, 2 Registered Communications Distribution Designers)

Architecture & Buildingls Systems:
Architecture, Interior Design, MEP Engineering

Municipal Engineering:
Survey, Site Design, Environmental Engineering

Transportation & Structural:

Technologly Gonsulting, Design
& Integrationr

I4 licensed architects, 4 licensed engineers

14 licensed engineers, 7 licensed land survel'ors,
4 licensed landscape architects, 2 licensed geologists

l0licensed engineers

2 design and integration certifications

Principals
Ghristopher J. Bond, PE (NY, PA, VT, DE)
Chief Executive Offi cerlPresident

Kim D. Abbott
Director of Finance

Greg J. Barr, PE, LEED AP (NY, PA)
Vice President

Nathan G. Binns, PE (NY, PA)

Barry J, Dumbauld, PE (NY, PA)
l)irector of Transportation

Ryan P. Garrlson
Director of 'l'echnology

John D. Gleckner Jr,, PE (NN PA)

Luke Grasmeyer, RtA (NY, PA)

Dean C. Hackett, RLA, LEED AP (NY)
Vice President of Business Services

Gary E. Henrn AIA (NY, PA)

Darin L. Rathbun, PE (NY, PA, MD, NJ)
Vice President

Kristi L. Rathbun, PE (NY, PA, VA)

Jeffrey M. Robbinsn AIA (NX PA)
l)irector of Architecture

Timothy K. Steed, PE (NX PA, Nl)
Corporate Secretary

H U NTrNGrNrrRs IARcHrrF.crs rsuRvnyoRs Company Profile
7



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U Nl T TNGINtIRS r ARCr rrrlcrs r suRvryoRs
8



Kng Gonsufting Engineerc & Land Surveyingn PtG

3284 Walden Avenue

Depew, NY 1 4043 Te|716.677 .5464

Corporate Overview

Established in May 1994by Susan M. King, L.S., P.E., King Consulting Engineers & Land
Surveying, P.C. (KCE) is a multi-discipline engineering firm specializing in land surveying, civil
and environmental engineering.

KCE is certified as a Woman-owned Business Enterprise (WBE). Our staff has registrations in
New York and California for Civil Engineering and Land Surveying. Ms. King serves on the
New York State Board of Engineering and Land Surveying.

The KCE staff of registered professional engineers, surveyors, designers and construction
inspectors utilizes current technology to assist in completing each project. Equipment includes
electronic total stations, data collectors, automatic and digital levels, drafting and engineering
software, full size plotter and laser printer.

Staff at KCE is comprised of career individuals committed to providing quality work for our
clients. Each member has at least l8 years experience in one or more of the following:

. Boundary Surveying

. NYSDOT Highway Survey & Mapping

. Topographic Mapping

. Precision Control Traversing

. Volumetric and Earthworks Survey

. Civil Engineering

. Hydrology

. EnvironmentalEngineering

. Constructionlnspection

9



This Pagle lntentionally Left Blank

H U Nl T rNGrN.rRs r ARcHrrrc'rs r suRVDyoRS
1A



Project Management Team

Tim Steed, PE
Principal-in-Charge/
Water System Expert

Bryan White, PE
Project Manager/

Water System Engineering

Des Team

Ben Wolfling, PE
Site/Civil Engineering

Andy Kinsley, PE
Transportation Engineering

NickBayer, PE
Water System &

Environmental Engineering

Jonatha Meade, PE
Site, Stormwater & SWPPP

Expertise

Tomas Klaseus, PE
Water System

Regulatory Expert

Harley Connelly
Water Systems Engineering

& Expertise

King Consulting
Surveying, Environmental &

Civil Engineering

H U N T tNGTNDnRs I ARcHrrrcrs r suRVEyoRs
11

Organizational Chart



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

H U N T rNGrNnr.Rs r ARcHrr'crs r suRVEyoRs
12



Timothy K Steedn PE
Principal/Director of Civil Engineering

Tim Steed is a key metnber of the HUNT project teams that provide civil engincering services to clients in the public and
private sector. Tim is ail expert in municip;rl water modeling, design of water supply and distribution systems, designs for
\^/astewater treatment and collection, and storm water control.

Tirrr's experiellce as a client/project manager enables him to efficiently nranage environmental engineering, including
developing hyclrologic studies ancl designing pumping and wastewater treatment facilities.

Education
' Sy.u.or. Universitl., Syracuse, NY,

MS, Engineering Management,, 1998

Syracuse, NY,

NewYork,
Perrnsylvania, #PF;07 1 262, 2004

Selected Proieet Experience
Town of Springwater, Water & Server System Studies, Springwater, NY
fhe fbrvn of Springu'ater had received violations for their groundwater supply well being
under the influeuce of surface water as well as inability of their u'astewater Lreatlnent plant to
nreet efiluent limits. The llown desired to investigate the overall systenr and identify any \.vater
and wastewater system shortcomings that m31' bg contributing to these violations or identify
portions of thc system that do not rneet standards. Tim worked with the Town Board along
with the water & wastewater operators to complete a comprehensive study of the existing
water and $'astewater system, identify system deficiencies, evirluate irnprovernent alternatives,
prioritize irnprovements, develop cost estimates, and to identily a preferred solution. 'lhese

studies were utilized to secure various grants ar-rd loans. As a result, the Torvn completed
varions watcr systcrx irnprovcmcnts and arc in thc process cll'complcting signilicant upgracles
to their n'astelaler collection and treatrnent systems.

Guthrie Healthcare Systems, Inc., Replacernent Corning Hospital, Corning, NY
Project Manager on site/civil design for new $100 million hospital facility. This included overall
site design, new water storage tank and nrunicipal system exter.rsion, new wastewater lift station
and resulting 2 mile force main, helipad, oll-street parking areas, site access, Al)A accessible
routes, green stormwater management practices, lighting design and extension of NYSDOT
thoroughfare. This project also resulted in aligr.rrnent modificatior.rs and alteratior.rs to rv\rir.rfield

Creek. Coortlinated with client and agencies to obtain the necessary local ar-rd state approvals.

Village of Angelica, Water System hnprovements, Angelica, NY
Provided design of the transmission main includir.rg autornatic blow off valvcs to allow the
efficient movement of the water from the Village's spring house 4.3 miles east of the community
to their distribution and storage systems. I{is e{Iorts included modeling the Vllage'.s system for
future analysis.

Town of Dryden, Sanitary Sewer Collection System Study, Dryden, NY
Project lvlanager lor design to continuonsly monitor rvastewater flon's in strategic portions of
the Tou'n of Drydcn wastewater collection systern using multiple {'low monitoring strategies
including area-vclocity metering and Palrncr-Borvlus in conjunction with ultraviolet levcl

Town of Vestal, CMOM/Sanitary Sewer Inflow and Infiltration Study, Town of
Vestal, NY
Project Manager for developnrent of a Capacitl', Mar.ragement, Opelation and Maintenance
Plan (CMOM) and an Inflow and Infiltration Study to alleviate increased flo'n's rvitl.rin their
collections system due to the inflolv of storm water and ground u'ater infiltratior.r. The CMOM
developed an overall plan to determine r.vhele system improvements were necessary and
incltided preparation of a Sen'cr Overflow and Irrnergency Response Plan (SOIIRP), a I'Iealth

HU llTrrNGrNFrltts r Artcrr 
'r-c's 

rsu.v!,yo*s
13

Resumes



and Safety Plal and a "\ /ork Order" system for Torvn implementation, HUNT also modeled
the sewer collection system using Innovyze InfoServer computer software.

Village of Endicott, CMOM Plan, Village of Endicott, NY
Project Manager for preparation of a CMOM Plan to address problems related to large flows
during storms and wet weather, as well as spills and overflows in the sewer collections system,
and a sanitary sewer main maintenance policy for the Village. HUNT also prepared a Sewer
Overflow and Emergency Response Plan (SOERP), a Health and Safety Plan and a "Work
Ordcr" system for the Village to implernent.

Village of Savona, NewWater System, Savona, NY
Design Engineer for the design and management for the complete design of a new water
distribution system, suppiy, and storage facilities to include preparation of a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).

Town of Erwin, Coopers Plains/Long Acres Water System, Cooper Plains, NY
Corapleted design of a significant water system expansion including 30,000 ft. of rvatermain,
500,000 gallon water storage facility, rechlorinalion station and all associated site work (security
fencing, grading, restoration, etc.). Due to the nature ofthe expansion and intricate sequence
of construction was developed to rninimize interruptions of existing water system customers.
Design included preparation ofcontract documents and provision ofbidding assistance.

Village of Bath, Water Distribution Study, Bath, NY
Condr.rcted a comprehensive study of the Village's water distribution system which services
approximately 6,600 persons. Study included utilization of computer rnodeling to et'aluate
approximateiy 70 miles of rvatermain.

Village of Waverly, Various Projects, Waverly, NY
Hydraulic Sndy - Design Engineer: Completed a cornprehensive study of a water supply and
distribution system consisting of a water filtration plant, four groundra'ater supply wells, a water
storage tank, and approximately l5 miles of watermain. The study included the elaluation
of available water suppiy and storage in relation to peak water dernand from which it was
deterrnined that an additional 1.3-MG water storage and 400 GPM of water supply was
necessary

Water System Analysis and Funding lnvestigation - Design Engineer:
Funding was sought out for the Viliage of Waverly to complete many necessary irnprovernents
including the construction of a neu' 1.5-MG water storage tank, a new groundwater supply well
and various watermain improvements. A grant of approximately $900,000 r^tas obtained from
the United States Departrnent of Agriculture (Rural Development) in addition to a low interest
loan of nearly $2, 1 00,000.

H U NTTNGTNEERs rA RCrrrrECrs rsulrvF:yor{s
14

Resumes



Bryan White has 12+ years of civil and environmental er-rgineering experience and construction ir.rspection.'lhe majority
of lris experiencc-involves project enginecring an<l management clutiei for flood damitge repairs anci protection, watcr
und 't"ut .n'ater design, and_various ite_designs for municipal and private clients. BryJns versatility irnd depth of project
knowledge allows him. to offer HUNT clients the folJor,ving skill sets: conceptutrl plans and estimates, linal designq
agency permitting, bid{19, corr^structiotr observations, andproject close-outs. These efforts have seen liirn navigating the
cornplexity of MWRR, DOS, FEMA, CDBG, DASNY, and other grant prograrns.

Education
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute,
Troy, NY, BS, Civil Engineering,
200tt

Professional
Registration
Prol'essional Engineer,
Nen'York, 099Bs4, 2018

OSI{A 10

Skills
AUTOCAD CiVil3D

Carlson Site Design

Adobe Suite

Selected Proiect Experience
City of Salarnanca, General Engineering Term Agreement, Salamanca, NY
Projcct lvlanager ancl Project Iingineer serving as main point of contact lbr the City of
Salarnatrca lor multiple projccts sincc Scptcr.nt'r cr 2021 , irrcluding a CDBG fundcd Watcr
System Study of the City's water infrastructurc, an E,FC EPG funded I/I Study ol [ivc' speciltc
ser.l'ersheds, the Fir:e Departrnent'.s bathroorn and locker roorn renovations to accomrnodate
a new fetnale firefighter, the Veteran',s Menrorial Park stone arch repairs, and general services
as agreed upon by the City and FIUNT undel the General Engineering'Ierm agreement.
Responsible for the coordination o1'multiple disciplines rvithin thc fimr to deliver proclucts in a
prolessional ar-rd timely mannct'.

Seneca County, NYS Route 414 Server Rehabilitation * Phase l, Seneca County, NY
Project mttttager for the cornpletion of design ;Lnr,1 irnplerrrentaticllt of a previous inflow ancl
infiltratior.r study on a section of salitary selver main frorn the NYS lhruway to a clischarge
into the Seneca lralls sewer system. Projecl included field investigations ol existing sanitary
scwer mattholes, rccotrmendations for improvements - inclutling replacemcnts of frante and
covers, cen-rentitious and epoxy lining of manholes, and relrlacemcnt of a manhole within a

wctland, projcct cost cstimates, and dcsign documents.

Hamlet of Willard Water District Water Systern Improvements, Romulus (T), NY
lllc lbwn of Romulus'Willard l4/atcl f)istlict receives its chlorinrrtecl lvatcr frorn the
NYSDOCCS'Willard l)rug Treatnent Centcl that is sourced frorn Scneca Lake. The majority
of the district's systen-r was installed in 1955'r,vith now nndersized ancl deteriorating cast iron
pipc. As Project Manager, Bryan coordinated the complction of a PER, ERR, and dcsign
documents for specific replacements throughout the system to irrprove the lvater quality
aud itrcrease fire protection, as r.t'el1 as assist in applying for and successfully gettirrg the tolvn
awarded $1,250,000 frorl CDIIG for construction of the project in2023.

Town of Locke Water System Improvements, Locke, NY
Utilizing a portitx't of the Town-s I\RPA funds, HUNT ivas taskcd with a tight timcline for
evaluating the existir.rg water systeln, developing a PER with proposed project improvements,
providing engineering estinrates fol the irnprovernents and begin applying for grar.rts. The
'Ibn'nt rvater system that rvas originally constructecl over 100 years ago currently consists of
two supply u'ells, an elevated ll'ater storage tank, and distlibution rnains that cullently l"ras an
undcrpcrforming wcll and dctcriolating storage tank. As Project Mar-ragcr, Br-1ran 6vg153,v\' thg
assessment of the systern, PER, and project costs, coordinated u,ith subcontractors and the
Tou'r-r fbr well trssessmeuts, and assisted rvith environllentiil review and zrpplying for grants.

H UNlTrNcrNrir:r{s r.rRcr r 
'r..(i'r's 

r su.vr:y()*s
15

Resumes



iF\

NicholasA. Bayer, PE
Project Manager/Water Systems Leader

Nick Ilayer fo.cys.e9 o1 walel tleattrrcrrt projc'cts in his role as a IIUNT Project Manager and Environn-rental Engineer. IIis
experienceis highlighteti by scveral iarge inlrastructure improvernent projects at muiricipal $'astenater treatment facilit1es,
as u'ell as his acaderttic ellorts researching innovative biological nutrient rbrrroval treatment processes. Nicl<'.s experience
inclucles bid-phase services, couslniction-acl.ninistration sirvices, ancl project marrager.nent, as well as preparation of
eilgineering.dralvings, calculations, reports, technical specifications, and support for*grant funding p,tog.^irr. FIUNT's
clients benefit fronr hi.s disciplined attention to detajl and cornrnitrnent to quut;ty engineering.

Selected Prolect Experienee
Education
Universit)' o{' Rochester, Sinron
Busines.s School, Executit'e MBA,
Finance,2023

Llniversi$. of Wisconsin, X{adisort,
, 1{rI, j\4.S. Environntental

Engineering Lewis Hanford Kessler
Fellou'ship, 2018

State University of N\'at Bufl-alo,
Buffalo, NY, B.S. Environrnental
Engineering, 2014

Professional: ReElistration
Pr"o s.sionaiEngineer,
Nen'York, 104001,2023

Afliliations
' Nelg York \{ater Environmenl

Association

Genesee Vallel. QlnPl.r Treasurer'

i .r\ir and \,\hste Managernent
Association

lVater Lr.rvironnrent Federation
i Gontinuing Education

OSHA i0-hour Training Conrse

Town of Wayland, Loon Lake Server System Evaluation, Wayland, NY
'[he Ncrv Yorl< State Dcpaltnrcnt of Envilonmcntal Consclvation (DI]C), in corrjunctior.r
rvith lhe Nerv Yrlk Statc ]lnvironrnental Fircilitics Corporation (EFC), alvardcd.vVayland
an F.ngineering Plar.rning Grant of $30,000 in late 2021 to help the Tilrvn pay for the initial
planning of eligible Clean Water State Revolving funcl (CWSRF) water cluality projects.
Wayland's speci{ic goal was to brir-rg municipal sewer to the area around Loon Lake to solve the
degradation of water quality cause cl by the arcat privately orvned, otr-site wirstewater treatment
systcms. Nick joins a IIUNl'team that has played a supporlive rolc for the lbwn through each
step ofthe project.

Town of Bath, Lake Salubria & Kanona Water System Evaluation, Bath, Ny
Lack of r,vater service in the Kanona/Lake Salubria areas hirve styrnied economic developn-rent
opportunities and has long been.r concern of rnany residents in the irrea. Nich joins his
I{UNT colleagttirs to rvork closely ryl1l the 1bnm o1'llath on thi: proposed lvater system
initiatives. These initiatives lvere determined through a cornprehcnsive Prelirninary
l)nginccring Rcport that was clcvclopcd by collaborating closely with involvcd mcmbcrs
of the llbrvn, ancl tleeting with intcrested parh'rers/businesscs ol the cour.rty (i.c., Wilkins
RY NYSDOT, NYSDOII, Ilath Electric Gas and Water Systerns). The study investigatecl the
extetrsiot-t of lvrrter frorn the Village o1'Bat]i to thc lbwn and r.r'as nsed to clevelop lunding
applicalions to the usDA ILD, NYS E,FC Drinking water state Revolving Loan Fund, Nys
C)fljce o1'Con'rmurtity Renewal Commtuity Developr.r-rent Block Grant, and othcl state &
fcdcral progrirnrs.

'lhis u,ork atas conpleted before Nick johrcd the HIJNT tettm.

village of Warsarv, Wastewater Trcatrnent Facility Improvements, warsarv, NY
Project Mattaget'for the $6.0 Miliion upgracle project at the Warsar.r' \,VWTI-I Upgrades inclutle
construction o{'tlt'o nel acl'obic digesters, a dewatering and aeration blorvcl'facility, a UV
clisinf'cction system, and various process equipmsnl and sitc improrzcments. '11rc prnjcct is
fundecl rvith a 30-ye ar 096 intcrcst loan through thc N*v Vrrk Statc Environmental lracilitics
Corporatior.r and a \Arater Quality Implovelrent Project grant.

Village of LeRoy, \{rasteu'ater Treatment Facility Improvements, LeRoy, NY
Project Manager responsible fcrr thc $ I 2.0 Million upgrade plojcct at tlie LcRoy wwT Ti.

Upgradcs inclucic constructiot-t o1'a nclv inllucnt ancl hcadrvorks building, no,r'plirlary clari{ier
and rnodifications to the cxisting prirnarl, clarilier, nelv screw pumlrs, activated sh,rdge proccss
in-tprot'etttents, installation of nerv aeration blolr'er.s, and sludge handling process upgrades
inch-rc'ling two lte\.\'attacrobic digester-s, ils n'ell as tlie arcldition of a UV clisinfection systent.
Challengcs inclucled a SPDES permit renerval rvith stricter amrnonia rernot'al lintits and thc
desire for Class A Rjosolicls procluctiot.t. 'lhe project is fundecl with a 30-year 096 iuterest loan
through thc Ncw Vrrl< Statc l:nvironurcnlal lracilitics Corporation.

H U f\ T r,ii(; r N Lr Rs i 
^ 

R(. r r r r L(.r's r srj *\, ryo R s
16

Resumes



City of C_orning, Wastewater Tieatment Facility Capital Improvements Project
Report, Corning, NY
Project Manager responsible for the construction of a new UV system and chemical feed
facilify. Additionally, conducted an evaluation ofthe existing facilityinfrastructure and
planning for future needs at the Corning WWTF. The report recommends a project that plans
for a design life of 20 years including headworks improvements, new influent lift pumps,
primary and secondary clarifier improvements, roughing filter geodesic dome cover, digester
boiler upgrades, and a septage receiving station.

Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority, WWTF Disinfection Study,
Livonia, NY
Project Engineer responsible for the preparation ofthe engineering report which was
successfully submitted for $767 ,250 in grant funding through the Water Quality Improvement
Project program. lhe report evaluated alternatives to disinfect eftluent from the Lakeville
WWTF in compliance with SPDES permit requirements. Alternatives evaluated included UV
ozone, and chlorine disinfection. The recommended alternative of UV disinfection was selected
on the basis ofa life-cycle cost analysis and avoidance ofhazardous chemical handling.

Village of Akron Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements, Akron, NY
Project Engineer contributing to the $6 Million upgrade project at the Akron WWTF.
Upgrades include replacement of Rotating Biological Contactor units, installation of new screw
pumPs, equalization tank mixers, anaerobic digester mixing system, two anaerobic digester
floating covers, and a new biogas handling system, as well as the addition of a UV disinfection
system. The project is funded with a 30-year 0% interest loan through the NewYork State
Environmental Facilities Corporation and a Water Quality Improvement Project grant.

H U N T TN.TNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
17

Resumes



Jonatha L. Meade, PE
Site/Civil Engineer

l

Civil Engineer' ]onatha Meade'.s over thirteen years of site/civil engineering ancl lancl clevelopment experience is
demonstrated through her creative ancl detail-oriented engagernent. fonatha has been responsible foi the cornprehensive
site/citil design of various residential, retail, conrnercial, and rnixed-use sites. IIer skills iliclude the production of a.w'ide
variety of docutnents, including plan preparations, conceptual designs, perrnitting and construction documents.

]onatha's areas of specialization include the iollowing: site clesign, stormwater management design ancl gracling, SWPPP
design, utility design, land subdivision, and perrnitting.

Selected Project Experienee
Education
Union College, Schencctadl,, NY,
BS, Cir.il Engineering, 1996

Professional
Registration
Irrofcssional Engineer
New \brk, #089809,201 I

Neiv fersey, #24G804840400,
201t)

Afliliations
Arnerican Society of Cir.il
Engineering, Mcmber

Contlnuing Education
Rochester Engineering Sociefy
Annual Senrinars {20 l3-present)

Cooper Plains Long Acres \4/astelvater System Sewer District Extension, Torvn of
En+'in, NY
Civil and design cngineer for sanitary pump stations associated lvith a proposecl mr.rnicipal
wastcwatcl'collection systcr.n to scrvicc thc -Iort'n 

of Dnvin. Project consistccl of the installation
of approxirnalely 30,000 linear: l'cet of ncw system piping, creation rtf itrur new punrp stations
and associated other appurtenances. Cornpletion of all design tictors associated rvill.r pr.rnrp
stations for proper tt'ansfer of lvastc to wastcwatcl fir.cility for trcatrrcltt. Wrotc irtrd creatccl
complex Engineer's Report lbl project summarizing new municip:rl system including gravity
and force mair.r piping systetns and purnp station design, as required by the NYSDI1C for.
technical revierv and systerr approval. Report also included SWPPP section for irnpleurentation
of erosion control features during ploject constmction.

Wastewater Sewer System and Wastewater Treatment Plant, Town of Woodhull,
NY
Civil and design engineer for sanitary purrp stations associated lvith a proposed tnunicipal
waste\,{atct'collection syslern to service the lbrvn of Woodhull. Project consisted of Lhe
installation of approxinrately 25,000 linear: feet oi'new systenr piping, ir"rstallation o{:trventy,
eight cflluerlt pttmp tanhs (in replace o{ ex:isting septic tar.rks/systenrs), crea{ion o1'four nctv
pump stations and associatecl otl'rer appurtenanccs. Completion olall clesign factors associatcci
with purnp statiotrs for proper trarnsfer of waste to proposed tvastewater facility for treattnent.
Wrote and created complex Engincer'.s Repolt for project snmmarizing new municipal system
including glavity ancl folce rnain piping svstems pump station design ancl sequence batch
reactor for prol-rosccl \,vaste\.\'ater tre atntent facility design, as required by tlie NYSDFIC for
tcchnical rcviov and systcm approval. Rcpolt also includcd SWPPP section for inrplenrentation
of erosion control lleirtures dur ing project construction.

Gcnesee County fail Projcct, Smrt Architects & Engineers, Tolvn of Batavia, NY
Civil Design Project Manager for the site development associated n'ith a stand-alone I16,840 sf
|ail fircility on a currently undevelopecl 16 acre property. Included site evaluation, SIIQR rcviog
and crcalion of desigr-r tlevelopnrcnt plans for constrnction estimating and regulaton'reviews.
Specialty approvals includecl archacological investigation, rvctland investigation, site access
through existing County builcling shared drivewa)', ar.rd possil>le lvater main declication to the
'lbu'n. Challenging design required extensive coordination betlvcen 1brvn, County, Genesee
County Jail Conmittee, NYS Commission on Corrections, and n.rultiple design consuitants.
Multiple approvals u'ill tre required, inch.rding'lbr,r'n Site Plan Revierv and I-and Separation,
'lolvn \\ratcr/Sanitary Sovcr Sclvicc Connectinrl Pcrmits inclucling Back Irlow Plcvcnl,er (llFP)
and Industrial Usc Pennit, NYSIJPO No hpact, NYSDOT Utility/Drivcway Connections,
NYSDEC SPDES Pcmrit anrl San S*r'cr Extcnsior.r, NYSDOII watcr arnd Lrack flolv prcvcnter.
Proje ct expected to continue through construction docnrnents ancl biclcling in the F'all of Z0Zl.

H U Nl T rNGrNrlrir{s r A r{(ir r r'.(-1 s r su*vrly()Rs 18
Resumes



Benedict Wolflinsn PE
Civil Engineer

Ben \4/olf.ling, PF, is a project etrgitreer whose seven years of experience in water, wasteu'ater, and environmental
engineer:ing oft-ers HUNT s clients thecompelling courbination o1'thoughtful experience and state-<if-the-art design
solulions; tntrsI rccetrtly burnishe_d by his being ar,valdecl his PI] in 2021 . Ben'.s skills inclucle cleveloping clrawings for design
atrd coustruction,_experience with writing specifications, preparing bids, ancl revier,ving submittals. He possesses first-harJd
ir-rspection knorv-horg inclucling coustruction pr:ocedures and rnanaging contractor teirns. Ben',s success with federal, stirte,
and locally fundecl project highlights his personal dedication to clients; prorlpt, elljcient, and adept at completing projects
zrccording to plans, he excels at working u'ithin budgets and timelines.

Selected Projeet Experience
Education
Univcrsitl' at BulTalo, Bu{lirlc, NY,
BS, Cir.il Engineering, 2015

Professional
Registration
Profcssional Engineer,
Neiv York, NY #t03891, 2021

Skills
D e s ign Exp er tise: Er.n'ironnental
Revielts; Municipal
In{iasl.ructure Design ; Site
Design; Project Managemenl;
Bidding & Specification.s; SWPPP
Preparation & Compliance
Inspection, Estimating; Proposals

Soft*are: AutoCAD Civil 3D;
\{atcr.Gl,lvlS; HydroCAD;
PlarrGrid; InfoWater Pro;
InfoS\VMM; Nervforma

City of Salamanca'Water Systern Inprovernent Study, Salarnanca, NY
Thc City ol'Salamanca's watcr systcnr has rnultiplc notcd clcficiencics, ancl thc lloarcl of Pr.rblic
Utilities (I3PU) desircd a preliminarv engincering rt'polt (PF,R) fttr improvemeuts in thc
water system. Ren developed the PER using information fi'om sile visits and an analysis of the
existinq water systelr, along rvith investigation irrto the Serreca Nation of Lrdiarrs water systent
to deterntine connectivity and den-rands on the Salamanca system. Ile also created a water
rnodel of the existing systern using thc InftlWater program and nrodelled ploposed altemirte
improvements lor the lrlrl{.

Village of Canisteo, Water System lmprovernents, Canisteo, NY
Ben providcd design and revio'r'of engineering plans for a urater main repiacement project.
This CDBG f uuclecl project included improvements to the existing \.vatel'storage tanh. Plans
lbr cleveloped lbr the levee, strearn, and raiiroad crossings. I.Ie coordinatecl with NYSDEC lbr
revierv and approval of project plans for tlie foint Application perrlit.

77is u,ork was conlpleted bcJore Ben joined tlrc I-IUNT tcttnt.

North Harrnony (T), Water District No. I Map, Plan, & Report, North Harmony, NY
Preliminary water modelir.rg and ner'r' wate r- system design in the Town of Nor^th Ilarn.rony, NY.
Designed several iterations of rvater systenr layout inclurling locations ibr a 0.75 MG tank ancl
3 different potential phasing options depending on funding available to the Tor,vn. Deliverables
included thc Map, Plan, ancl report and preliminary cost cstirnates for all thlce phases of thc
projcct, projcct estinriitcs lor thc entire project -$19 milli<-n.'Ihe project was cxpanded to show
the potential for neu, ivater districts surrounding Chautauqua l-ake.

Town of Torrey, Water District No. l, Torrey, NY
\{ater rnodeling arrd design of nelv water systern for the'fown of 'lbrrey in }'ates Countl', lll{
Included coordination rnrith thc DE,C (strcam crossing rcPolt and cnvironrrcntal arralysis), DOII
(watet' 51'51sm), DOT (highway t'ork ancl roacl crossing pcnnit), Norlolk Southcrn I{ailroad (five
crossitrg permits), and Yates County for appr6y4l5. Designed the u,ater system and the meter
I'ar,rlt, alor.rg with pclforrning hydr-ant flow tcsts and obsen'ing soil borings for railroad crossings,
ar.rcl prepared specilications ancl bidcling docurnents anel coorelinated with the ftrndir.rg agency
for final approvals (USDA Rural f)eveloprnent).

Town of York, Retsof Sewer Improvements, York, NY
Design artd developtnent ola nerv sepalatecl storm and sanitar:y sewer to rcplace tlre outciated
crrmbiucd scrvcr system. Project incluclecl a survc)r and inspection of residcnces in the current
se'iver district to determine viability of design optior.rs and to assess the condition of the eristing
iufrastructure. Research into existing syster-n ancl coordination with the local higlnvay aucl selt'er
cleparttncut lvas perlormetl to cretrte thc r-nost t:{iicient clesign for the new systetn.

H U l\ T r,N (; I N r.r r, I{ s r 
^ 

r( (i r r r' r.: c'r's r su *\r riy ( ) r(s
19

Resurnes



Andrew E, Kinsleyn PE
Transportation Engineer/ADA Design

Andrerv Kinsley is a lead HUNT liansportation designer, who since 2017 has r,rorked on projects in Central NX the
Southern Tier, Westem NX ancl Northern PA. A Clarkson University gracluate, his engineering backgrouncl inclucles civil
and structural.er-rgineering, and he has designe_d nurnerous bridge replacement and rehabilitation projects, both federally
funded, pass-through projects and locally funded projects. IIe has alio performed designs fbr culverti, traflic signals,
retaining rvalls, and roadways, andhas been responsible fbr gaining approval of numerous NTYSDOT highway work permit
applications. Andrew is well-verseci in structure design, highway design, NYSDOT and PennDOT Stanilards and Design
Procedures, de.sign approt,al docurnentation rvork, utility coordination, ancl envirt)uurental permitting. He has a rvide iange
o1'computer skills, inclucling MicroStation and bridge superstructure ancl substrncture design software.

Education
Clarkson University, Potsdam,
NY, BS, Civil Engineering-
Structural, 20.1 7

Affiliations

Selected Project Experience
City of Canarrdaigua Department of Public Works, North Bloomlield Road
Reconstruction, Canandaigua, NY
Moving from its base at Br,rftalo Street and F.A. Baker Park antl continuing 0.6 miles up to the
Civic Center cor.nplcx and YMCA at North Street, North Bloonrfield Road is an "cnergetic"
continuali<-rn of the City's vibrancy and trail/pedestrian/biking network. HUN'l"s efl'orts
aim at a dranlatic r:edesign o1'the aesthetics and bicycle and pedestrian access of the corridor'.
As lead designcr of this projcct, Ancly providcd a dcsign for a compreher.rsive rcimagining
of the proftle, drainage, and sanitary infrastructure along the corridor. Vertical crirve sight
distances were improved to increase safety along the cor ridor. A ner.l' sidervalk rvas added
on the north side of the road to directly connect the newly constructed YMCA to F.A. Bal<er
Park. lhe road itselfwas reconstructed and u'idened to ailow for safer bicycle access along the
corridor. A new closed drainage system and sanitary scwer systel-n was constructed, and water
main was replaced in select locations whcre there were changes in profile.

Monroe County, Peclestrian Safety Action Plan, Various Torvns & Villages, Monroe
CountyNY
HUNT was retained by Monroe County to assist thern with the preliininary/final design,
bidding, and construction phase services 1'or the Pedestrian Safety Action Plan lvhich would
improve the safety for peclestrians at approximately 250 signalized and unsignaiized
intersections, as weli as several mid-block crossings throughout numerous towns ar.rd villages
within the Counfy. During prelirninary design each location n'as visited to evaluate the current
condition of signage and pavernent markings.

Empire Access Perm 75 Projects
Lead Designer of tl'rese Penn75 ApplicaLion Subrnissions to NYSDOT. Responsible for
developing required drau'ings for submission, as r'r'ell as coordination of required supporting
documentation lor subrn issiorr.

2021 BridgeNY Applications - Responsible for completing and submitting llridgeNY
Applicati<lns for the lollowing structures:
Diqtnoncl Valley Rd over Neiger Hollow Creek,'Iown of Tioga, Tioga County
Fitzpatrick Hill Rd over a Trib. to Catharine Creek, Torvn of Montour, Schuyler Cour.rty
Rrtilrood Aye over Dean Creek, 'fown of Spencer, f ioga County
ITtilbcrt llollow Rr/ over a Trib. to Michigan Creek, lblr'n of Spencer, Tioga County
I4/ashbunt Rd ovel Seelytolvn Creek, lbu'n of Spencer, Tioga County
CIR-31 ovcr Vancampcn Creek, Villagc of Friendship, Allegany County
Kirby Street over Newton Creek, Village ol'Bainbridge, Chenango County

H U l\ T rNG I N B Frr{ s r A r{ c rr r'. r-.c'f s r su *\r Eyo 
^ 

s
20

Resumes



Tomas l{laseus, PE
Sen ior Water/Wastewater Engineer

Torrras Klaseus, P.E,. elevates HUNT'.s cortsttltaut toolbox try offering nearly 50 years of experience ir.r clet'eloping atrcl
n.ranaging drinking water, S5round rvater protection, and environmental health prograrrrs and projects. His ferspective is
boll-r irrforrreti ancl broadened by executing a wicle varicty of project budgets, tlaining ancl supervisir-rg perionnel, ancl
preparing grant applications ar.rd contracts.

Education
Univcrsity ol' Minncsola, Institutc
of Technology - l4inneapolis,
I4ir.rnesota; Bachelor ol' Civil
Engineering De.qree, 1970

Professional
Registration
Prof'ession al Enginecr,
Ner.r York State, 1982
059000#

Affiliations
1999 - 2017 Steuben County
\\later Quality Cor-rr-d irrati n g
Committee

1999 - 2017 Steuben Coung'
Local Ernergency Planning
Conrnittee

1999 - 2017 Southern Tier
Ce ntral Planning Ph,vsical
Resources Advisoly Committee

1999 - 2017 Schuy'ler County
\Vater Qualitl. Coordinirting
Comrnittee

1999 - 2017 Schuyler Counly
Local Emergenc)' Plaltn 'pg

Con.rmittee

1999 -20t711981 - 1985
Nerv York State Conference of
Environmental Health Directors

Selected Proiect Experience
Senior Water/Wastewater Engineer: HUNT-EAS
Conducts QA/QC oir engineerir:rg plans, speci{ications, ancl reports for public water
and ol-tsite.sewage systen-i projects. Pror.icles technical supp_ort and_rne_nioring for
junior engineers on sound er.rgineering practices and on NYSDOI{/NYSDIIC/
USEPA laws, reguiations, aud emerging issues pertairring to public water and onsite
sewalle systems. Perforrns various rnarketirrg serrrices {br HUNT and consults rvlth
nrunicipalities regarcling regulatory conrpliance anci oper:atit,rnal issues pertaining to
their public u,ater systems.
Selectecl project design assistance and QA/QC:. 'lbwn of Campbell new r,vell, treatment lacility, ancl distribution system

extension
. Village of Canisteo major distributiorr systern upgrades
. Village of Interlalien raw watel intake/pumping station ancl n.ricrofilLration/

GAC treaLment facility
. Village of Waverly rnajor clistribution systern upgrades
. llbwn of Eru'in ne'w'well ancl treatr.nent facility
. Village of Endicott 1,4-dioxane and iron/n.ranganese well water treatment

study and new well investigation

District Director: New York State Department of Health, Hornell District OIfice
(retit"ed 12/28/17)
Devclopetl and rnanaged environnrental health prograrns/activitics in SLeuben and Schuyler
couuties to ensure compliance rvitl.r the Public I Iealth Lara' iind Nels York State Sanitary Code.
Provitlcd progriu.rl clircction and supcrvision to Oliicc staff (6 9Iull tirne stafl'ancl 6-9 part-
timc sLafl). Conductcd inspectior.rs/investigations, rcvicwcd enginccring plans, and preparcd
reports/docut.ttents on public r,r'ater svsterrs, rcalty subdivisions, campgror,rnds, public bathing
frrcilities, aud ousite sewage treatnrent systenls at pelnritted ftrcilities and irt residences requirine
alternative systems. Worked with the City of Ilornell, the NYSDOT, and thcir cor"rsulting
engiuecr on the design, constructiorl, ancl start-up of a GAC plant to treat VOCs in the City's
wells. As part of lhat eflbrt, perlorrneci currrclinaLecl plart rcviewlapproval with Lhe NYSDOI{
central ofiice, conductecl in progress and complcted rvorks inspc'ctions prior to plant startup,
ancl addressed pultlic/media collcerns regarcling the project. Conducted or"rtbreali/death/
serious injury investigations rincl obtained correction ofpLrblic health hazards. Plovideel
techuical assistance, training, and general inforrnation to interested parties on District
plo gl'arns/activiti es.

H U l\ T tN(;INI111*s r ,\ ticrr r 
'r..c's 

rsu*\'f.y()Rs
2I

Resumes



Senior Sanitary Engineer: New York State Department of Health. Hornell District
Office
Directed the public water supply and realty subdivision programs in the Hornell District
Office. Supervised public water supply staff, including a senior sanitarian, junior engineer,
and keyboard specialist. Conducted inspections/investigations, reviewed engineering plans,
and prepared reports/documents on public water systems, realty subdivisions, campgrounds,
public bathing facilities, and onsite sewage treatment systems at perrnitted facilities and at
residences requiring alternative systems. Reviewed and approved proposed facility plans
for public water supplies, realty subdivisions, public bathing facilities, rnobile home parks,
campgrounds, swimming pools, and sewage treatment systems at permitted facilities and at
residences requiring alternative treatment systems. Provided project management services and
technical assistance to selected public water suppliers via NYSDOHT "Self-Help'prograrn in
a twenty-county western New York regi<ln. The program predominantly helped smaller, rural
communities to build needed and affordable water projects.

Senior Project Manager, P.E.: LaBella Associates. P.C. -- Environmental Division,
Rochester, NewYork
Managed Phase II Flazardous Waste Site investigations at two IHWDSlisted landfills. Activities
included contracI negotiations, health and safety plan development, geophysical surveys,
monitoring well installations, environrnental media sampling, analytical data interpretation,
and report preparation. Prepared an RI/FS work plan for an IHWDS-listed industrial site,
participated in contract negotiations and managed the project. In addition to remedial
investigation and feasibility study activities, the workplan included a citizen's participation
plan, quality controi program plan, health and safely plan, and an interirn rernedial rneasure
pilot study involving dual-phase extraction. Prepared a drinking water market analysis based
on regulatory driving forces. Initiated and rnanaged the developnrent/expansion ofdrinking
water-related services provided by the firm. business development, proposal preparation and
presentation, contract negotiations, and project management. Prepared and submitted an
industrial air emission permit application to the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation.

Special Services Unit Supervisor/Principal Engineer; Minnesota Department of
Health - Minneapolis, Minnesota
Developed and managed special prograrrs and projects related to drinking water/ground
water protection. Programs included wellhead protection, lead contamination control, and
landfill/dumpsite monitoring. Projects included pesticide, volatile organic chemical, lead,
leaking monitoring well, and obstructed abandoned well studies. Provided program direction
and supervision to Unit staff ( t f) - hired and trained staff, Developed grant applications and
contracts and managed budgets for Unit programs and projects. Prepared reports covering
Unit projects and programs and made presentations to the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, the Minnesota State Legislation, and numerous other organizations.
Represented the Department on committees and at meetings, conferences, hearings, and media
events involving various lvater-related activities.

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARCH.rEcrs r suRVEyo^s
22

Resumes



: Harley Gonnelly
, Construction Inspector

Harley Cor-rnelly recently retired as the Water System Operator for the Village of lVatkins Glen. In this capacitl', he
supen ised staff, oversaw quality control of new construction and rehabilitations, managed the syslsm's SCADA System,
tnitnaged the water filtration treatment plant and nlllllerous pump stirtions, oversaw the operation of 5 lrrater storage tanks,
and perforn-red budgeting and reporting to the Village and NTS Department of Health.

His quality control activities included rvorking as the head inspector/observer on capital projects and rehabilitation or
repair contracts, overseeing consulLant inspection activities, and revier,vir.rg design documents ancl equiprnent/nraterial
submissions.

Selected Proiect Experienee

Corning Community College,
Nelv York State Fire Academl',
Montour Falls, NY; Haz-MatI,
II, III
Corning Community College,
Corning, NY, Basic Computers,
D Water License

Western Water Authoriry Butralo,
NY, IIA l'Vater Filtration'License

Communitv
lnvolveme-lrt
Volunteer Fireman

Town of Montour Falls Planning
Board

SUEZ Water Owego-Nichols Inc., West Main Street Watermain Replacement and
Observation, Owego, NY
Construction lnspector to monitor maintenance protection of traffic and to document any
incidences such as accidcnts, injur:ies, or complaints. Ilarlcy r:ecorded quantities, docunrcnt as

built, and assisting in jobs scheduling. He also pall"icipal.ed in pr<-rblem solving.

SUEZWater Orvego-Nichols, W. River Rd.Watermain Replacement, Nichols, NY
Construction observation of the installation of the replacement of a lvatermain on West River
Rd. As Construction Inspector, Harley monitore d the rnaintenance protection of trallic in
addition to docutnetrting incidences like acciderrts, injuries, or cornplairrts. He also recorded
quantities, docuurent as-built, assisted with job scheduling, and assisted with project problern
solving.

Village of Watkins Glen, Madison Ave (NYS Route 14) Watermain Replacement &
Observation, Watkins Glen, NY
I{arley rnonitored maintenance protectior of tralhc, document incideirts - be it acciclents,
injuries, or cornplaints. He also recorded quar.rtities, docuinent as built, and assisted in jobs
scheduling and problem solving.

Village of Watkins Glen,I&I Lnprovements, Watkins Glen NY (Directly employed
by Village of Watkins Glen)
Harley Connelly provided tlaily construction oversight for a large wastewater collect system
inrprovement project including over 10,000 feet of cure in place lining and sanitar:y sewer pipe
replacement along with replacenrcnt or rehabilitation of ovcr 60 sanitary sewer manhole s.

Rehabilitation o1'the sanitary selver manholes included chemical injection, cementitious lining
arnd eporT iinir.rg in strategic locations. Harley was responsible for providlng field oversight
trnd direction ernd evaluated con.rpleted work, change order requested, requests for inforr.nation,
etc. This project inch,rded regulatory compliance and funding assistance from USDA RD.

Davis House Sewer Rehabilitation, I&I Improvements, Town of Owego, New York
Harlc'y completed design and construction oversight for various wastewater improvements
pointed torvard I&I recluctions. These included r.rearly 7,500 feet of cured-in-place lining of
the szrnitary sewer along with replacernent of neariy 36 sanitary sewer manholes. 'lhis project
included regulatorl' compliance and fttnding assistance from the NYSDEC WQIP.

Town of Dix, Water CDBG Extension Study, Watkins Glen, NY
'ilre Watkins Glen / Corning KOA Resor:t lr'as looking into municipal rvater and \,vasteu,ater
soLlrce s, rvhile thc Torvn of Dix rvas looking to loop thcir n'atcr systern to re duce disinfe ction
byproclucts. Flunt u,as contracted to clo a study on the feasibility of such a extension. i{trrley
was part ofthe team that assessed well and septic systelns for residents along the route.

H{JNTTNGTN}.r..r{s rAr{crr 
'r 

r..c's r suRVr.yorrs
23

Resurnes



SUSAN KING POPE, PE-LS

OBJECTIVE Presiclent ofKing Consulting Engineers & Land Surveying, PC, providing civil engineering,
limited environmental engineering and land survey services.

SKILLS & AEILITIES Susan's experietrce in civil engineering and surveying offers recommendations/altematives
early in the project development ^servicing the client's neecls botl for the future as well as

for the irnmediate needs.

SELICTED PROJECI

[XPERIENCE

Staff Engineer

Employee of the City of Plano Texas in Engineering Department. Responsibilities include
reviewing private projects fbr compliance with City standards, City utility master plan,
preparing review letters of approval/ or disapproval with comments. On-site inspection of
private prr:jects for compliance with approved drawings, coordination',ryith other
depaftments.

Professional lingineer

Project Managerf Engineer providing civil engineering services to lhe private sector for
land development site planniug comntercial and industrial permitting, Services also
include engineering and suruey services to other professionals as a sub-consultant.

Permit applications for NYSDEC part 360, NYSDSC SPDES stormr.vater permils, County
health department permits, County health department reports, County/ State public water
supply permits, and tbrensic engineering for insurance cases.

EDUCATION Clarkson College ofTechnology, Potsdam, NY 1979
IlS, Civil and Environmental Engineering
Alfred Ag & Tech State College, Alfred, NY 1976
AAS, Land Survey'lechnology

PROFESSIONAL

REGISTRATION

Professional Engineer New York
Licensed Land Surveyor New York
Registered Civil Engineet California
Registered Land Surueyo4, California

LEADERSHIP Chair of the Citizens Advisory Council, City of Lockport

Emeritus Board Member New York state Board of Engineering and t,and Surveyiug

REFERENCES FURNISHED UPON REQUE5T

24



Markets Served:
. K-12 Education

. College/University

. Municipalities

. Healthcare

. State Agencies

. Industrial

. Private Development

. Architecture

. Asbestos/Lead Abatement Design

. Aviation Management Planning,

Architecture & Engineering

. Building Condition Surveys

. Civil/Site Engineering

. Clerk-of-the-Work Services

. Construction Administration

. Control Systems & Automation

. Cost Estimating & Cost Control

. Electrical Engineering

. Energy Studies

. Facilities Management Information
Systems

. Funding Solicitation & Administration

. Furniture, Fixture & Equipment
Selection

. Interior Design

. Investigative Engineering

. Land Surveying

. Landscape Architecture

. Municipal Engineering

. Mechanical Engineering

. Planning

. Programming

. Project Management

. Regulatory & Agency Approvals

. Storm l)rainage Design

. Structural Design

. Technology Design & Planning

. Transportation

. Water & Wastewater

. Wetland Delineation

H U NTtNGTNEERs rARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRs
25

HUNT Services



Loekport Master Plan lntroduction:
As noted throughout this proposal, HUNT's ability to take a Master Plan
project from "study to funding" is a signature feature of our efforts on behalf of
municipal and academic clients. The full-service engineering and architecture
analytical perspectives we bring to bear on infrastructure and building analysis
continues through the engagement of our grant-writing team. A holistic
approach to asset management studies has left us a recent roster of master plan
projects, including most recently $5-$10M work at Campbell, Canisteo, and
Waverly, and a litany of others highlighted by Bloomfield, Candor, Castille,
Naples, Olean, and Romulus. (Beyond that, we wclcome yortr contn.cting aur
references listed separately below.)

Project Examples
Village of Wellsville, Water System Improvements, NY
HUNT was retained to design improvements to the water system for the Village of
Wellsville in the southern part of Allegany County.

The Phase I & II Water Storage Tank construction project consists of two (2) 2-million
gallon AIVWA Dll0 wire-wound concrete water storage tanks, thus removing the
existing open, in-ground, and steel tanks storage facilities from service and ir-rcreasing the
total water storage for the Village to 4 million gallons. These new tanks were construited
at the location of the existing facilities on property owned by the Village. Both tanks
have the same finish floor and overflow elevations. By constructing these tanks with an
overflow elevation equal to the existing 750,000-gallon steel-welded tank, no significant
increase in the operational pressure of the distribution system was observed. The first
2-million gallon tank was constructed adjacent to the 750,000-gallon steel-welded tank,
which was removed from service and demolished. The construction of this tank did not
affect water storage or water supply to the Village. Upon placing the first water storage
tank in service, the existing 3-million gallon open reservoir was removed from serviie
and demolished. The final cost for this project was $2.3 rnillion.

Village of Enficott, Watermain Extension and Village Interconnection, NY
The $69,075 project consisted of a water main extension along Route l7c from the United
Water Owego water system to the Town of Owego water system. New 8" ductile iron
water main was instailed using conventional trenching methods (2,000 feet) as well as
valves, hydrants, and a precast concrete meter pit. HDPE water main was also installed
using directional drilling methods for Route 17c crossing (75 feet).

H U N T TN.TNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r sul{vEyoRs
26

Relevant Experience



HUNT provided design, permit submission, bid documents and
construction services.

Town of Erwin, MunicipalWater Study/New System,
Coopers Plains-Long Acres, NY
Residents within the Coopers Plains-Long Acres hamlet relied
upon individual groundwater wells for their water supply.
However, Iack of separation between groundwater supply wells
and on-site septic system resulted in significant contamination of
said well.

HUNT initiated a study to investigate the extension of municipal
water to the CPLA hamlet, identilied project costs per user and
obtained nearly $4,000,000 zero interest loans and $2,000,000 in
grant funds from the New York Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Program.

The new CPLA water system consists of nearly 40,000 LF of
ductile iron water main, a new re-chlorination station and a new
500,000 gallon water storage faciliry.

HUNT also provided construction inspection services through
the completion of the project.

Contact: Rita McCarthy, Town Manager, 607.962. 7874

Village of Waverly, Water System Study/Improvements, NIY

Hydraulic Modeling: The Vllage of Waverlyhired HUNT
to develop a hydraulic lnodel of the Village's water system to
predict flow rates and pressures for different operational and
water demand situations. The model is an efFective planning
tool lor evaluating the impacts and potential bene{its of
improvements to the water system, such as looping dead-end
watermains, installing a new groundwater supply, or replacing
undersized watermains.

New Production Well: The Vllage produces 375 million
gallons of potable water annually. Decreasing production
yields from the existing groundwater supply wells and the
unpredictable water quality of the existing surface water
reservoir are overcome by the Village's new groundwater
production well (Well No. 4). The groundwater withdrawn
at the new well house is chlorinated on-site and discharged
to18-inch diameter ductile iron chlorine contact piping that
provides the necessary 30 minute retention time.

Water Storage and Tiansrnission: The Village increased their
water storage capacities from 500,000-gallons to 1.8-million
gallons with a new water storage tank. The water storage
tank has an access drive as well as a re-chlorination building
necessary to maintain the appropriate levels of chlorine within
the proposed water storage facility.

Additional improvements included upgrading existing
water transmission and distribution mains along Ithaca Street
and across Cayuta Creek. Funded through USDA Rural
Development grant'and loan, the project cost was $3,100,000.

H U N T tNGTNEERs I ARcHrrEcrs r su*vEyoRs
a-z/

Relevant Experience



Village of_S_avona, Water System Study/NewVillage Water
System, NY
Residents within the Village of Savona relied upon individual
groundwater supply wells to provide a potable water. However,
inadequate separation distance between the individual
groundwater supply wells and the individual on-site septic
systems resulted in contamination of a significant number of
private groundwater supply wells.

HUNT worked with the Village and the NYSDOH to document
existing conditions and develop a conceptual plan for the
provision of a new municipal water system.

This plan was instrumental in securing funding for the project
to develop two municipal groundwater supply wells, a water
distribution piping system, and a water storage facility.

HUNT successftrlly completed the engineering design to include
two 180 gallon per minute groundwater supply wells, 40,000 L.F.
of ductile iron water distribution piping and a new 350,000 gallon
water storage facility.

HUNT completed the contract documents and engineering
drawings with multiple alternatives to ensure the lowest possible
construction costs for the client.

The project was completed in 2008 and won a Platinum
Award from the New York chapter of the American Council of
Engineering Companies (ACEC).

Contact: Brian Scott, Mayor, 607.583.2124

Town of Owego, Water System Improvements, NY
A significant portion of the Town of Owego's water system was
constructed in the early 1960s. Many of the existing welded
steel water storage facilities were vandalized and all tanks were
not recoated since the original installation. HUNT completed
a detailed water storage facility evaluation that assessed the
internal and external conditions ofthe reservoir and compared
the costs for rehabilitation versus replacement. The findings
were documented in a preliminary engineering report rvhich
was utilized to secure low interest loans from the United States
Department of Agriculture Rural Development office.

Three of the six water storage facilities were earmarked for
replacement as a result of deflection of the tank floor; degradation
of the tank ring wall and loss of tank wall thickness. The existing
welded steel water tanks were replaced with precast, prestressed,
concrete wire-wound water storage tanks.

The other three were structurally sound and had many years of
useful life remaining. Therefore, the tanks were rehabilitated and
recoated. Rehabilitation included the addition of securityfencing
and fall prevention measures, while repainting involved removal
of existing lead paint, fill areas having significant corrosion,
repair damaged welds and repainting of the tank using NYSDOH
approved coatings.

Additional water system improvements included the replacement
of a below grade booster purnp station with a conventional
above grade booster pump station to elirninate confined space
requirements.

The final cost of the project was $3.182 million.

H U NTtNGTNEERs r ARcH.rECrs r su*vEyo*s
28

Relevant Experience



Village of NewarkValley, Water System Improvements, NY
HUNT completed a comprehensive evaluation/study of the
Village of Newark Valley public water supply system including
two groundwater supplywells,20+ miles of water distribution
piping and 400,000 gallon in-ground water reservoir.

HUNT identified several shortcomings in the Villaget public
water system including high amount of unaccounted for water,
insuflicient groundwater well pump controls, inadequate fire flows
throughout the Village, illegal out of Village water users, exposed
stream crossing piping, inadequate water storage volumes for fire
protection, and unsound water storage facility.

HUNT prepared a Preliminary Engineering Report which was
used to secure USDA Rural Development grant and zero percent
loan funding to construct a new -500,000 gallon wire wound
concrete tank, replace or eliminate 18,000 LF of undersized or
leaking water main, established SCADA Controls of the well
pumps and storage levels, provided new fire hydrants to allow
proper fire fighting opportunities, and improved the main trunk
supply into the heart of the Village Center'.

The final cost ofthe project was $3,715,000 .

Contact: James Tornatore, Mayor, 607.642.8686

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARCHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRS
29

Relevant Experience



LTUNT'S site/civil team brings a depth of experience, and an attention to detail that will
I. Ibe evident in the development proceris and at the completion of your facility.

Site/Civil Services:
Site Planning

. Grading

. Drainage

. Parking Lot Layout

. swPPP (SPDES)

. Storm Water Mgmt. (SPDES)

. Erosion & Sediment Controls

. Utility Layout

Studies/Reporting
. Water System Analysis
. Hydraulic Water Modeling
. Map, Plan & Report
. Sanitary Sewer/Inflow & Infiltration

Studies
. Sewer Modeling
. Stormwater Pollution Prevention

Plans
. Funding Assistance

Water Infrastructure
. Groundwater Supply Design
. Disinfection & Water Quality

Treatment Design
. Water Booster Pump $tation Design
. Water Transmission & Distribution

Piping Design
. Water Storage Facility Design

Wastewater Infrastructure
. On-Site Wastewater Treatment &

Disposal Systems
. Sanitary Sewer Collection System

Design
. Wastewater Lift Station Design

Stormwater Infrastructure
. Stormwater Collection System Design
. Stormwater Detention Facility Design

Transp ortation Services
. State & Interstate Highways
. CounV&TownRoads
. Urban Streets & Streetscapes
. Bridges
. Traffic Studies
. Horizontal Curve Studies
. Constructionlnspection
. Pedestrian &Bicycle Paths

H U NTtNGTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs rsuRVEyo*s
30

HUNT Services



Proiect Examplesl
Town of Lansing, Municipal Wastewater System Study, Ny
HUNT prepared a prelinrinary feasibility study tb identi$' and evaluate a municipal wastewater
system. for the core area of the Town of Lansin!. the focui of this study was to develop
preliminaryprojec_t costs estimates as well as piojected estirnates of us6r costs (rates).'The
information provided in this study was also uied to support an application for project funding.
Tlre existing residences and businesses have septic systems, which creates a potential for
contamitration. Due to the high ground water and the soil conditions, the s6pfic systems are
prone to failure and ineflicient.operation. In addition, the lack of a central se^wer system is a
determent to colnmercial and higher density residential development.

As a part of the study, HUNT considered providing wastewater collection and treatment for
lhe central areas located along New York State Rou-te 348 from approximately 1/3 of a mile
east of Auburn Road westerly to Myers Road and continuing west^erly ulong Myers Road to
C^a)'uSa Lake. The study cvaluatcd three different collections-systems'and 6ur different types
of rvastewater treatment facilities. Preliminary costs estimate and short term ( l5 years) aiJets
management evaluation were prepu'ed for ali alternatives

Contact: Edward Lavigne, Town Supervisot 607.5i3.8896

Town of Woodhull, MunicipalWastewater System Study, Ny
HUNT prepared a preliminary feasibility study to identify and evaluate a municipal wastewater
system for the Town of Woodhull area. The focus was to develop prelirninaryproject costs
estimate-s as,well a.s projected estimates of user costs (rates), and to support an application for
project ftinding.

Existing residences and businesses have septic systems, which creates a potential for
contamination. Due to the high ground water and the soil conditions, the septic systems are
prone to failure and inefficient operation. This is a particular corlcern in the proposed study
area, where lot sizes are often small, resulting in inadequate separation distancei between wells
and septic systems.

HUNT consiclered providing rvastewater collection and treatment for all areas within the base
study area, which contains those properties located within the original "Village of Woodhull"
limits. There were three alternatirres considered. The first was the installation of gravity sewer
mains with a conventional package treatment plant. The second was the replacernent of the
existing septic tanla with grinder pumps, installing smaller force mains and the installation of
a_conventional package treatment plant. The third was leaving the indMduals septic tanks in
place and irlstalling ejector purnps, force rnains and the installation of a sand filter treatment
system or a small MBR plant, Preliminary costs estimates and 15-year assets management
evaluations were prepared for all three options.

Contact: Scoft Grant, Town Supervisor, 607.458.5128

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
31

Relevant Experience



't

@s.@#,@]*x*

,-t

4*

*\
{

I
t
!_

_'1.':

mrrltill

xiEir

Town of Springwater, MunicipalWastewater System Study,
NIY
The Town, after receiving concenls frorn the Department of
Conselvatior.r and the City of Rochester over faulty operations of its
new wastewater wetland system, hired HUNT to investigate if the
system n'etlands treatment was constructed in conformance with the
approved design. Upon finding the wetlarrd rvas not constructed to
design, HUNT negotiated'r,r'ith the bond conpany to reconstruct the
wetlands, and per:fon.ned construction administration and inspection
for the Town.

After completion of the wetland treatment system, the clischarge
was not meeting the limits for ammonia during the warm weather
months. The wetland system was experiencing approximately one-
half of the design flows during the summer months. These reduced
flow rates lvere stressing the nicroorganisrns within the.r,vetland cells.
Consequentlyi I{UNT worked with a wetlands specialist to fine,tune
the process by installing a recirculation system to fill the cells faster
and thereby reducing the stress on the microorganisms. As a result,
tlre discharge is rneeting performance limits.

In addition to the recirculation system, HUNT desigr.red
n-rodifications to the existing l'acility to ailow for an overflow
should the existing mechanical or electrical systern fails. Other
improvernents to the existing wastewater treatment plant include
emergency generator, inflow meter, efflnent meter, and ultraviolet
disinfection.

Contact: Jhn Crowley, Systern Operator, 585.5 1 9. 1 82i

Schuyler County, Municipal Wastewater Study, Village of
Odessa, NY
Within the Village olOdessa, the existing residences and businesses
have septic systerns, which create a potential for contamination.
A trout streams dissect the village and tl.re potential risk of
contamination from the septic systems of adjacent homes and
businesses is high. In addition, the lack of a cer.rtral sewer system
is a detennent to commercial and higher density residential
developrnent.

Therefore, the Village Board retained the services of HUNT
to investigate the economic feasibiiily of constructing a public
lvastervater collection and treatment system. The focus of this study
was to develop prelirninary project costs estimates as well as plojected
estimates of user costs (rates). 1he infonnation provided in this study
is also intended to support an application for project funding.

As a part of the study, HLINT evaluated two scenirrio.s. One was
providing wastelvater coliection and treatrnent for the central
business area and the other was providing service to the entire
Village. The study et'aluated three different collections system and
four di{Ierent types oIwastewater treatirent facilities. Preliminary
costs estimate and sl-rort term (1 5 years) asset management
evaluation were prepared for all alterr,atives.

Cont a ct : Tim otlry O' I I ear n, C o unty Admin str at or, 60 7. 5 3 5. 8 I 0 6

:

t,

df

H U Nl T rNcINrrRs r 
^R.rr.rEcrs 

r suR\rryoRs
32

Relevant Experience



SCOPED, Municipal Wastewater Study, Village of Burdett,
r{Y
HUNT prepared a preliminary feasibility study to identify and
evaluate a municipal wastewater system for the Village of Burdett.
The focus of this studywas to develop preliminaryproject costs
estimates as well as projected estimates of user costs (rates). The
information provided in this study is also intended to support an
application for project fu nding.

The existing residences and businesses have septic systems, rvhich
creates a potential for contamination. Due to the high ground water,
shallow bedrock and the soil conditions, the septic systems are prone
to failure and inefficient operation. In addition, the lack of a central
sewer system is a detennent to commercial and higher density
residential development.

As a part of the study, HUNT evaluated two scenarios. One was
providing wastewater collection and treatment for the central
business area and the other was providing service to the entire
Village. The study evaluated three different collections systems and
evaluated four different types of wastewater treatment facilities.
Prelirninary costs estimate and short term (15 years) assets
management evaluation were prepared for all alternatives.

Contact: Judy McKinney Cherry, SCOPED, 607.535.4341

SCOPBD, Wastewater Infrastructure Study, Schuyler
County,NY
HUNT was retained in November, 2002, bythe Schuyler County
Partnership for Economic Development (SCOPED) to conduct a
county-wide study of the inter-municipal water and wastewater
infrastructure. The project included a series of exploratorypublic
meetings with each of the towns to gather data on areas of growth,
and their perceived needs for improved water and wastewater
systems.

HUNT produced a development strategy for business and economic
development based on a review ofwater plans and an inventory of
existing systems. ln addition, HIINT worked with SCOPED and
the local municipalities to identiSrpotential sites for economic and
business growth and development throughout Schuyler County.

Contact: Judy McKinney Cherry, SCOPED 607.535.4j41

H U N T.NGINEERS r ARCr"rrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
33

Relevant Experience



Tioga County, Municipal Sewer Collaboration Study, NY
HUNT was hired to conduct an assessment study of three municipal
sewer systems in Tioga County, NY, containing four wastewater
tr-eatrnent plants, and to identi$r potential areas ofcollaboration
and/or shared services among the multiple sewer systems along the
Susquehamra River.

HUNT conducted interviews with the plant operators and collected
data on the wastewater treatment facilities, then prepared an
economic evaluation of combining the wastewater treatment plants
in the Owego area as well as collective ways to reduce costs. The most
promising cost reduction was a shared biosolids (sludge) composting
facility. Currently, all three municipalities haul their sludge for land
application. Two municipalities pay a'trpping'fee to dispose of the
sludge for land application, and would save substantially by utilizing
a shared composting facihty. HUNT prepared an O&M estimate and
an evaluation of operating a shared composting facility.

HUNT prepared a Preliminary Engineering Report that evaluated
the installation of a sanitary sewer collection system within the
Village of Nichols and pumping the wastewater to the existing
Lounsberry wastewater treahnent plant. The report included the
evaluation of three types of sanitary sewer collection systems -
gravity, grinder pumps, or effluent pumps.

Included in the overall study was an asset management plan for the
four wastewater treatment plants. HUNT obtained information and
replacement costs for the equiprnent and facilities at each treatment
plant and prepared plans based on EPAs recommended design life for
the equipment.

HUNT also investigated alternate sources of funding.

Contact: Elaine Jardine, 607.687.8257

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARcr-rrrEcrs r suRv'yoRs
34

Relevant Experience



T-TyryT has beenperforming Asset Management Evaluations of critical municipal
I Iinlrastructure for mal]y years, rvith each project streantlined lor the par-ticular needs
of our clients. At the core of;l n-reaningful Assbt Managernent Evaluatiorr are the following
elemettts: protect p-ublic health and safety, provide neclssary public service to citizens,
and maintain a self-sustaining-business-iike unit. HUNT stiongly believes in deveioping
a thorough und-erstanding of the system, conducting comprehJniive data-gathering'to "
lornrulate lacl.-driven information on the condition of the existing facilitiei, including:
study original design documents, conduct fieid investigation and-observation, and
discussions rvith facilities manager, administrators, anii maintcnance staff.

Some of the standard elements of HUNT's Asset Management Evaluations
include:

l. Current State of Assets
. Interviews with curreut and past staff. Inspections.(Field verication, building cor.rdition assessments, televising,

monitoring)

2.Inventory & Documentation of Assets. Short-liied Assets
. Long-terrn Assets
. Equiprnent
. Personnel

3. LevelofService:
. Municipal Services
. Regulatory Cornpliance
. Protection of Public Health
. Ratepayer Expectation

4. Criticalitv
. Likelihodd of Failure
. ConseqttenceofFailure

5. Life-Cycle Costing
. Historic
. Prerzentative Maintenance
. Municipal Financial Health
. Rate Setting and Fiscal Planning

6. Capital Improvement Plan

7. LongTerm Funding Strategy

H U Nl T TNGTNEDRS r A*crrrrECrs r suRvEyoRs
35

HUNT Services



f) ain revitalizes landscaped areas, washes away qrime, and recharges groundwater
Aaquife-rs. However, jf not properly account"ei ior in the clevelopirerit of neighbor-
ho-ods and cities, it can have eilually detrimental effects such as erosion, floodin!, and
pollution of streams and lakes. ln particr.rlar, improperiy designed storm conveyance
systems (sewers, culverts, and channels) may ultimatelyrender portions of prof erties
unusable.

Often, _system design turns on the sizing and capacity of the sewer pipes. In certain situa-
tions, this can lead to conveyance instal-iations [hat do not account-for inlet and manhole
junctions.^To summarize a related hydraulic engineering principle, storm water under-
goes significant turbule-nce entering lnd exiting pipes, cf,inging direction and slope, and
the confluence of runoff from othei pipes.

When not accounted for, the depth of water can increase to such an extent that it can
begin to flood out of the top of an inlet or rnanhole - even with properly sized pipes.

Utilizing "energy and hydraulic" grade-line analyses, HUNT calculates the effects of these
losses in order to evaluate and design conveyance systems. Placing iulets offline, install-
ing flap-gates at key points_, and eliirinating acute, directional chaiges will yield massive
improvements at a relatively minor cost.

HUN lr-crNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRs
36

HUNT Services



Lf"UNT's familiarity with funding mechanisms stems from over 45 years of helping
I Imunicipal, academic, and private clients. HUNT has assisted 32 communities
secure approximately $50 rnillion in funding through 2l grant programs from 2018-
2020. These grants leveraged $105 million in community infrastructure improvemer,ts in
the region.

Many communities have projects that are eligible for state and federal funding but lack
the technical expertise and resources to identify potential funding sources, develop
comprehensive grant proposals, and manage project administration. The grant consulting
services offered by HUNT enable essential community projects to be realized, improving
the qualify of life for residents.

Our Grant Consulting Process
Communicatlon Plannlng: HUNT is committed to our clients and invests time in understanding local budgets, five-year plans, wish
lists, and priority projects.

Researeh: HUNT is well-versed in in'r'estigating the availability of grant funds to offset the costs incurred by cleveloping and upgracling
facilities. We will match projects to the best funding opportunities.

Application Development: HUNT works closelywith clients to develop competitive funding applications, including coordination
with regulatory and funding agencies, development of rnulti-year plaurs and preliminary engineering reports, cost-effective budgets,
documentation ofneed and support, and clear articulation ofobjectives.

Grant Admlnlstration: Our team will help to execute the contract, aid in environmental reviews, administer grant ftrnds, develop
project reporting, and support the awardee with community meetings.

Proiect Completlon: HUNT provides project oversight, certification of project cornpletion, and grant contract closeout support.

fft0rJ

H U N T TNGINEER. r ARcHrrEcrs r sur.'vEyoRs
37 HUNT Services



2A2O Projects Awarded

Broadband
$r4,467,878

e-
.i$

$2,349,832Village of Candor Water Infrastructure Improvement Plan
Prioritized water system improvements were selected to establish a reliable and
uninterruptable water supply, to protect the health and safety of the consumer and to
achieve compliance with regulatory standards,

$50,000 Village of Millport Water System Study
This project included the evaluation of existing water system supply production and
distribution, storage, metering systems, water system modeling, secondary water supply
for compliance with state standards, health and safety, and operational solvency.

$l1,000,000 to date for Livingston Counfy Fiber-to-the-Premises
This public-private partnership will result in a 400-mile fiber optic network bringing
broadband to the County. Upon completion, over 5,500 households, farms, and
businesses that are currently underserved or unserved will receive 1 Gigabit-level internet
service.

Community
Development

$35,000

If;,"ffi*T#H

Municipal Water

$2,590,000

Municipal
Wastewater

$1,310,000

Samplin$ of Grants Awarded
$2,974,094 Town of Erwin Wastewater Treatment Nutrient Removal & Disinfection
Mandated by both NYS DEC disinfection and Chesapeake Bay Total Maximum Daily Load nutrient reduction requirements, HUNT
implemented wastewater treatment plant nutrient removal, disinfection improvements, and the replacement of outfall piping.

$30,000 Town ofBath Lake Salubria and Kanona Sewer Study
This project involved the investigation of a municipal wastewater service extension to areas that are currently dependent on private on-
site septic systems; these septic systems are suspected of impacting surface and drinking water quality.

$320,000 Village ofBath Liberty Street Target Area Renovation Project
Building on the success of the Technical Assistance grant, HUNT targeted rehabilitation Gfant FUndS LeVefagedand streetscape improvements to create a vibrant mixed-use historic center.

H U N T tNGINEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRv'yoRs
38

HUNT Services



TJUNT's familiarily with funding mechanisms stems from over 40 years of helping
I lmunicipal, academic, and private clients. Our immersion in the process has even
included creating our own "shovel-ready site funding program" for Industrial Develop-
ment Agencies (IDAs) within upstate New York.

Between 2015 and 2018, HUNT has played a role in assisting municipal clients in the
Southern Tier, Finger Lakes, and Western NY areas capture well over $24M in water,
community, and wastewater grants. Available for both studies and implementation, those
monies have been secured from a variety of State and Federal sources including:

. NYSDECWateT Quality Improvement Act
r NYS Euviroruucnlal Facilil.y Corporation
. Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (WIIA)
. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
. NYS Empire State Development
. Department of State Local Governrnent Efficiency
. NYS Energy Research & Development Authority (NYSERDA)
. NYS Main Street
. United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development
. Appalachian Regional Commission
. NYS Bridge Program
. NYSDOT Transportation Enhancement Program
. NYSDOT Safe Route to School
. State & Municipal (SAM) Facilities Program
. Consolidated Funding Act (CFA)
. FEMA Disaster & Non-Disaster Relief Funds

I"unding & Institutional knowledge are inseparable, and our ability to help our clients
depends on the following: anticipating their needs and laying the groundwork for
thoseprograms with the appropriate agencies; developing multi-year plans and agency
compliant preliminary engineering reports to serve as basis for prioritization and
planning; and executing the often-complex funding applications and agreements.

Meanwhile, our grant writers, planners and team leaders systematically track the
wide breadth of funding sources available to our clients to determine all potential
opportunities. Even with the best laid plans, the turnaround on funding applications can
often be quite demanding, and again, our preparedness is an enormous asset. HUNTT
funding assistance doesnt stop with the application. our team will help to execute the
contract, aid in environmental reviews, administer grant funds, and support the project
through completion.

H U N T 
"NcrNEERS 

r ARcrrrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
39

Grants, Funding & Institutional Knowledge



\ [ /orking closely with client's financial team or advisors, HUNT rvill navigate issues concerning project aidability, related cycles of
V Y rnaxirnum incidental and cost allowances, and capitalizing on retiring debt service. Creative soluti<lns prepared by HUNT have

allowed our clients to leverage their local share and capital reserve funds to the nraximurr degree possible.

NYS EFC Infrastructure Improvement Act: NYSEFC provides grant funding to assist municipalities in funding rvater quality
infrastructure. A drinking water project ma)' be eligible for a WIIA grant of up to the lesser of 60Zo of total eligible costs ifter deducting
other grant funds awarded for the project, or $3 million. A clean water project rnay be eligible for up to the lesser of Z5o/o of total eligibG
costs, or $5 million. HUNT has assisted commnnities with this program and its predecessor, the NYS rvVater Grants.

NYS EFC Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan: Tl.re Clean Water State Revolving ftlnd provides interest-free or lorv-interest rate
financing for wastewater and water quality improvement projects to municipalities throughout Netv York State. EFC provides both
short and long-term financing at zero or low interest. Applications are received on a continuous basis.

USDA Rural Development: Over fifty linancial assistance programs for a variety of rural applications are offered through USDA RD,
including: Rural Business I)evelopment, Community Facilities, Water & Waste Disposal Loans & Grants. HUNT has experience with
the regional and state offices and can help facilitate the detailed planning and complex docurnent administration. Eiigibility for RD
funds vary from community to community, and HUNT's team can help clients determine their status.

FEMA Disaster and Non-Disaster Grants: Preparedness program funding to enhance the capacity of state, local, and tribal agencies to
prevent, respond to, recover frorn, and rnitigate all hazards. HUNT has experience helping communities anticipate and prevent future
hazards, and respond effectively when disaster strikes.

Additional Funding Sources: HUNT is
well -r'ersed in investigating the availabilify
ofgrant funds to offset the costs incurred
by developing and upgrading facilities.
HUNT's commitment goes beyond any
funding application, we are cornmitted
to our clients, our communities, and the
future. We know that lvhat makes a great
colnpany are the values and mission itb
built upon. We always say'rve're here for
the long iraul'and we tnealt it. We will stick
by you, support you, and work with you
until the end. Dont believe us? Why dont
you join us and find or.rt.

H U ll T tNGTNEERs r ARCrrr'r'r:crs r suR'DyoRs
40

Grants, Funding & Institutional Knowledge



MEP Services:
Mechanical Engineering

. HVAC Systems

. Industrial Fume/Material Handling
Exhaust Systems

. Hospital/Laboratory HVAC Systerns

. Energy Use Evaluation

. Automatic Temperature Control &
Energy Management Systems Design

. Commercial Kitchen Exhaust

. Clean Rooms

. Hydronic Heating/Cooling Systems

. Steam Piping Systems

. Chilled Water Systems

. Chemical Process & Manufacturing
Systems

. Sanitary/Aseptic Process Systems,
Equipment, & Piping

Plumbing Engineering
. Medical Gas/Compressed Air Systems
. Domestic Water Heating/Piping

Systems
. Sanitary Drain/Waste/Vent Systems
. Storm Water Drainage Systems
. Fuel Oil Piping Systems
. Fire Protection

Electrical Engineering
. FDA Process Validation IQ/OQ/PQ
. SQFCode
. Primary/SecondaryPower

Distribution
. Interior/Exterior Lighting
. Smoke/Fire Protection Systerns
. Emergency Power Systerns
. Security Systems

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARcHrrECrs r suRVEyoRs
41

HUNT Services



'tr...;"-a;4f 
.:

T_f UNT pfo.r'rdes the expertisc needed to support community problern solving and
r rraLional dccision-rnaking. we'rvolk through a transparent aird engaging process tt-r
brin g locally-devised initiatives to fruit ion.

Our team ofLEED-accredited planners, landscape architects and engineers recognizes that
planning requires a cornpreherisive approach addressing all dirnensi5ns of an iss[e.

we draw^on the plan-ning,-quantitative, and design skills of our team and partners to
provide flexible and feasible recornrnendations. -

Whether the project is_a_s_tand-a1one initiative or a larger design project tlrat our planning
services will enhance, HUNT will work to provicle a benelicial outcome.

Planningi Services:
. Brownfield Reuse Strategies
. ComPrehensive Planning
. Design Guidelines
. Downtorvn Revitalization
. Environmental Planniug
. Landscape Master Planning
. Grant Writing
. Master Planning

. Public Outreach

. Smart Growth Strategies &
Sustainability

. Transportation Plannirrg

. Viewshed Analysis & Regulations

. Waterfront Planning

. \A/ayfinding & Signage

. Zoning Regulations

.\-d

I
H U Nl T tN G r N E r.r r{ s r A R c r r r' r.. c . s r s u RV r.y o rr s

42
HUNT Services



Location: Big Flats, NY

Gontactl Shawn Crater
Water Superintendent

607.562.8443

fhe Town of Big Flats was comprised of
I multiple water districts having varying

rates, system configurations and system
conditions. While water rates were not
raised for nearly ten (10) years, basic sys-
tem functions were not being performed
and long term system solveniy was of
utmost concern for the Town Board and
water department.

HUNT was secured to conduct a compre-
hensive water systern study to investigate
consolidation of the various water districts,
complete a through asset management
plan and develop a an affordable rate
structure. The comprehensive study and
asset management plan investigated not
only infrastructure condition, but also all
other necessary components including
pcrsonnel, soft ware, computers, etc.

HUNT developed an asset management
plan that integrated needed short term and
long term improvements and identified a
rate structure meant to maintain system
solvency for the following20year period.
This plan also identified a 6ve (5) year
improvement plan, necessary preventative
maintenance procedures designed to en-
sure the longest useful life of system assets
and simple asset management spreadsheet
that the Town could utilize and update
annually.

HUNT helped Town of Big Flats with a
grant application and has ieceived funding
from the NYS Economic Development
Corporation.

HUNT Services:
. Water System Study
. Asset/Management Plan

#

H U N T tNcTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRv'yoRs 43
Relevant Experience



Location: Coopers Plains, NY

Gontactr Rita McCarthy
Town Manager

607.962.7874

p esidents within the Coopers Plains-
I\Long Acres hamlet relied upon individ-
ual groundwater wells for their water sup-
ply. However, lack of separation between
groundwater supply wells and on-site septic
system resulted in significant contamina-
tion oFsaid well.

HUNT initiated a study to investigate the
extension of municipal water to the CPLA
hamlet, identified project costs per user and
obtained nearly $4,000,000 zero interest
Ioans and $2,000,000 in grant funds from
the New York Drinking Water State Revolv-
ing Fund Loan Program.

The nelv CPLA water system consists of
nearly 40,000 LF of ductilb iron water main,
a new re-chlorination station and a new
500,000 gallon water storage facility and
monitor metering facilities.

HUNT also provided construction inspec-
tion services through the completion of the
project.

HUNT Servicesl
. Investigated Municipal Water
. Construction Inspections

H U N T tNcTNEERs r ARCrrrrECrs r suRVEyoRs
44

Relevant Experience



Don Reed
Authority Chairman

8r4.228.3366

Location: Genesee, PA

Gontactr

r|he Genesee Township Municipal
I Authority was awarded a Community

Development Block Grant (CDBG) to
develop a second well supply for their
existing water system. The site chosen was
outside of the village at their existing welli
spring house. The project required lest well
development and evaluation followed by
completion of the production well.

HUNT coordinated with Pennsfvania
Department of Environmental Protection
(PA DEP) for modifications to the existing
public water supply permit as well as
working closely with the Genesee Township

HUNT Services:

Municipal Atilhority and SEDA-COG to
administer the grant funds for the project.

The selected improvements for
Phase I were removal of a spring source
that was under the influence of surface
water as well as improving fire protection
and increasing water pressure throughout
the community. Construction on this
project was completed in 2019.

. MEP

. Suryey

. Site/Civil

. Structural

H U N T 
"NGINpERs 

r ARCHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRs
45

Relevant Experience



Location: Mansfield, PA

Gontact: Christopher McGann
Borough Manager

s70.662.2315

Mrili::11,''""J:,:f -$fiil:fi i:H
along East Main Street was in poor
condition and in need ofreplacernent.
They further determined that the storm
sewer was formerly a combined sanitary
sewer, and there were questions as to
whether all sanitary sewer laterals had
been fully disconnected. As a result, the
Borough hired HUNT to design a storm
sewer system to replace the existing storm
sewer piping in its entirety while verifying
the configuration and soundness ofall
previously reconfigured sanitary sewer
laterals. Construction began in October
2015 and consisted of replacement of

HUNT Services:
. Storm Sewer System Design Plan
. RePlacement
. Installation

approximately 2,200 lineal feet of the
system and installation of additional
stormwater drainage structures to provide
adequate stormwater drainage along East
Main Street. The project was substantially
complete in December 2015.

. Adequate Stormwater f)rainage

H U N T tNcTNEER' r ARcHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRS
46

Relevant Experience



Location: Salamanca, NY

Gontactl TracyChamberlain
Clerk

716.945.4620

rlahe Cirv of Salamanca owns and
I operat'es a public water system

sen'ing approximately 6, I 50 people
using2,687 service connections in the
City of Salamanca, the Township of
Salamanca, and the Township of Great
Valley. In 2019, the City completed
emergency rehabilitation of half of the
primary well field located on Water
Street. Improvements are needed in the
second half of the well field as well as in
other system components throughout
the service-area. The City received a
Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) to pnrsue a water system study
to determine what improvements were
needed.

HUNT partnered with the City to
perform data gathering and to assist
them in gaining a full understanding of
the systen'r and its operation. That study
included a complete system modeling 

'

in InfoSWMM, an evaluation of the

HUNT Services:
. Water System Study
. Water System Modeling
. Flood Protection Evaluation

flood protection for existing wells, and
a thorough asset inventory. HUNT also
evaluated the possible installation of a
new gas line to the water treatment plant,
a downgrade to a 480-volt system, a new
treatment plant building at a developed
(but unused) groundwater well source, and
the replacement of pumps, controls, and
standby generator.

The HUNT team also provided a report
phase and an environmental review The
report phase includes the development
of improvement alternatives for the
Preliminary Engineering Report and an
Environmental Report.

The Prelirninary Engineering Report
prioritizes recommendations and will act
as a road map on how best to successfully
implement the recommendations and
assist the City in applying for project
funding.

. Preliminary Engineering Report

. Environmental Report

H U N T tNcTNEER' r ARCHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
47

Relevant Experience



Location: Savona, NY

Gontact: Brian Scott
Mayor

607.583.2124

p esidents within the Vllage of Savona
Arelied upon individual gioundwater
supply wells to provide a potable rvater
supply. FIowevcr, inadequate sepalation
distance between the individual
grourrdwater supply wells and the
individual on-site septic systems resulted
in contamination of a significant number
of private groundwater supply wells.

HUNT worked with the Village and the
NYSDOH to document existing conditions
and develop a conceptual plan for the
provision of a nelv municipal water
system.

This plan was instrumental in securing
funding for the project to develop two
lnunicipal groundwater supply rvells, a
water distribution piping system, and a
water storage facility. Grants utilized for

this project included funds from the New
York Drinking Water Stale Revolving
Fund Loan Program and the USDA Rural
Development Prograrn.

HUNT successfully completed the engi-
neering design to include two 180 gallon
per minute groundwater supply rvells,
40,000 L.F. of ductile iron lvater distribu-
tion piping and a new 350,000 gallon water
storage facility.

HUNT completed the contract documents
and engineering drawings with rnultiple
alternaLives to ensure the lowest pr.rssible
construction costs for the client.

The project was completed in 2008 and
won a Platinum Award from the New
York chapter of the American Council of
Engineering Companics (ACEC) in 2010.

HUNT Servicesl
. Develop a Conceptual Plan
. Designing a New Municipal Water

System

H U N T TNGTNEERs r ARcrrrrEcrs r suRvEyoRS
48

Relevant Experience



Locatlonr

Gontact:

Naples, NY

Brian Schenk
Mayor

585.374.2435

fhe residents of the Village of Naples
I have experienced failing septic

systems, leading to high costs for system
replacernent, and logistical issues meeting
updated codes and regulations for new
systems. Additionally, the failing systems
may be contributing to contamination of
Naples Creek, a critical trout spawning
stream, along with other waterways
within the area. Therefore, the Village
obtained the services of HUNT, to develop
a preliminary sanitary sewer system and
wastewater treatment plant design to
service the residents and the businesses of
the community.

HUNT prepared a preliminary design
for approximately four miles of saniiary
sewer collection system, and the

HUNT Services:
. Grant Solicitation
. Sanitary Sewer Design

wastewater treatment faciliff. The svstem
serves 184 users, including iesident'ial
and commercial use types, totaling
approximately 50,000 gallons per day of
wastewater produced. The wastewater
treatment plant design required
consideration for nutrient removal,
including both nitrogen and phosphorus,
to meet stringent effluent limits required
for discharge into the Canandaigua Lake
Watershed. The preliminary design was
completed and presented to the Village
Board in the Fall of2017.The final
system design was approved in 2018
with the intent ofregulatory approval
and construction to follow. Project was
completed in2020.

. Wastewater Treatment Plan Design

. Construction Services

H U N T 
"NGTNEERS 

r ARcHrr'crs r sunvEyoRs
49

Relevant Experience



Locationr Tioga County, NY

Gontaet: Elaine |ardine
607.687.8257

Tl'UNT was hired to conduct an assess-
I Iment study of three municipal sewer
systems in Tioga County, NY, containing
four wastewater treatment plants, and to
identify potential areas of collaboration
and/or shared services amorlg the rnulti-
ple sewer systems along the Susquehanna
River.

HUNT conducted interviews with the
plant operators and collected data on
the wastewater treatment facilities, then
prepared an economic evaluation of com-
bining the wastewater treatment plants in
the Owego area as lvell as collectfue ways
to reduce costs. The most promising cost
reduction was a shared biosoiids (sludge)
composting facility. Currently, all three
nrunicipalities haul their sludge for land
application. Two pay a "tipping" fcc to dis-
pose of the sludge on the land application,
and would save substantially by utilizing
HUNT Services:

. Assessment Study

. Economic Evaluation

. Preliminary Engineering Report

a shared cornposting facility. HUNT pre-
pared an O&M estimate and an evaluation
of operating a shared composting facility.

HUNT prepared a Preliminary Engineer-
ing Report thal evaluated the instal]ation
ofa sanitary sewer collection system
within the Village of Nichols and pumping
the wastewater to the existing Lounsberry
wastewater treatment plant. The report
included the evaluation of three types of
sanitary sewer collection systems - gravity,
grinder pumps, or efl1uent pumps.

Included in the overall studvwas an assets
management plan for the four wastewa-
ter treatment plants. I{UNT obtained
information and replacement costs for the
equipment and facilities at each treatment
plant and prepared plans based on EPAs
recommended design life for the equip-
ment.

H U N T tNGTNEER' r ARCHrrEcrs r suR\zEyoRs
50

Relevant Experience



Kirg Gonsulting E rgineens & Land Srnrcyi[g, PrC

3284 Walden Avenue

Depew, NY 1 4043 Tel 716,677 .5464

Project Histories

Coopers Plains Long Acres Sewer District Expansion and Woodbine Water Tower Replacement,
Erwin, NY

Provided construction inspection for a 0 million dollar capital improvement project, assisted in
the design of wastewater treatment and collection systems, water tower construction, and quality
control observation and reporting for sewer district expansions in Erwin, NY inclusive of storm
drainage, paving and curbing, working within the requirements of New York State Environmental
Facilities Corporation and NYSDEC Water Quality Improvement Project Program.

Spaulding Lake Wastewater Treatment Plant, Clarence, NY

Spaulding Lake WWTP is located in an upscale community outside of Buffalo. It was
originally designed and built in the 90's for treatment up to 100,000 gallons per day. Several
years of poor performance, and many modifications over the years had resulted in an Order on
Consent. KCE provided studies, evaluations, research, reports, and design services for waste
water upgrades and improvements to existing plant. Work included analysis of historical plant
performance, analysis of plant flow, treatrnent process removal efficiencies, solutions for
addressing problem areas, developing construction drawings and specifications, and services
during construction. Challenges included compliance with NYS DEC consent order timeline,
keeping plant in operation while work is being performed, Iocating experienced contractors to
perform improvements, ordering and expediting parts from Germany, suppliers, manufacturers.
Two pieces of equipment required substantial time for delivery; to expedite direct contact with
the manufacturer revealed stock available which were oversized for the application, but resulted
in immediate availability and reduced cost. The meter was oversized, and resulted in little
fluctuation in flow rates tlru the plant, this was replaced with the corrected meter size for
reading accurate flows of the plant.

Quarry Hills MHP, Akron, NY

Original services were for on-site private sewage disposal system rehabilitation and/or
replacement. Studies and review of site revealed, domestic water distribution leaks, poorly
drained storm water system and maintenance of storm system, several manholes, pump station,
and infrastructure covers in need of repair and improvement to be elevated above grade. KCE
provided research, monitoring and evaluation for addressing water line leaks, maintenance work
on storm sewer, and minor work on the psds.

51



. Failed bed was taken off line, zabel filter manifold installed, along with flout to
distribute flows equally among remaining beds with proper dosing.

o Permitting from NYSDEC for discharge to wetlands
o Currently working with client and DEC for improvements to on-site pond.

CAO Rafi Green Masten Resource Center, Buffalo, NY

Provided programmatic environmental review for the NY Main Street Better Buffalo
Project. Prepared environmental compliance checklist, program description forms and
supporting documentation for the environmental review on seven (7) sites in the
Fillmore- Masten district.
Projects were funded by the Housing Trust Fund Corporation, under the New York
State Main Street, Buffalo Main Streets Initiative. Compliance applies to all sites in
the development process, including both public and private entities.

Rock Oak Estates West, Clarence, NY

Provided planning and design seryices for water, roadways, vertical & horizontal
alignments, san sewer system, storm sewer, retention/detention sizing, storm water
management, preparation of engineers' reports, RPZ application & services during
construction for 250 unit Mobile Home Park, 5 miles of road and infrastructure.

Gables on the Green, Clarence, NY

Boundary survey, topo survey, concept planning, preliminary water/sewer/storm/road
design, preparation of DEIS

USA Niagara, NYSDOT Old Falls St. Reconstruction, Niagara Falls, NY
o Provided topographic survey, primary control, and mapping services

Woodrow Wilson School, Sloan, NY; JFI( Middle/High School, Cheektowaga, NY; Theodore
Roosevelt Elementary School, Cheektowaga, NY

Stake line and grade for new building construction, including mqjor building corners
and offsets; provide drawings of staked areas

LaSalle Parkway, Niagara Falls, NY

. Completed drainage analysis and evaluation of existing conditions.

. Designed new storm system including retention/detention pond for proposed
improvements.

a

a

a

a

o

Golder Associates, Amherst, NY

52



o Provide certified quality assurance (C.Q.A.) land surveying for construction of five new
hazardous waste sub cells, and capping aZl-acre existing landfill at the CWM, Model
city, NY facility.

r Locate and map monitoring well locations at various sites in Western New York.
o Provide C.Q.A. land surveying for construction of double-walled leachate transport line.

Chemical Waste Management, Inc. Model City, NY

Perform monthly topographic surveys of active landfill cells, calculate volumetric
consumption, and provide record drawings of each measurement. Provide all new
location and historical tabulation for monitoring well system.
Maintain three-dirnensional monument control networks for the 700+ acre facility.

Northeast Buffalo Parkway, Phase 1, Buffalo, NY

Provided construction stakeout for improvements, including berms and bike path,
verified horizontal control, established secondary vertical control

a

a

a

53



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U N T TNGTNTnRS r ARcr.'rc's r suRV.yoRs
54



Lockport lntroduction
The City of Lockport's water distribution and sanitary/storm sewer collection systems,
each consisting of over 105 miles of piping, includes aging infrastructure and multipie
sections with unique challenges. Water distribution system challenges consist of
nrostly original iron and asbestos cement piping, large unaccountediloss, rnultiple
unmetered services, excessive breaks, and lack of tank storage for fire flow and high flow
regulation. The sanitary sewer collection system faces challenges including original aging
infrastructure, significant inflow & infiltration (I&I), as well as rapid elevation changes
and deep infrastructure leading to foreseeable construction challeuges. Storm sewer
challenges are similar to the sanitary with an estimated 707o combined sanitary/storm
sewers, origir-ral infrastructure, and disconnected drainage structures.

A comprehensive Water and Sewer Master Infrastructure Plan is required to divide
and conquer specific issues within the systems while maintaining a cohesive plan with
the objective of long-term planning for the systems as a whole. Hunt Engineers offers
this proposal to work in close partr.rership with the City to develop this master plan.
Our team-based approach will incorporate the City's long-term vision while providing
guidance for ftrnding opportunities, planning, and engineering knowledge for individual
prioritized projects.

PROJECT APPROACH

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM STUDY
The City of Lockport is faced with a water distribution that consists of infrastructure
well over 100 years old throughout the majority of the City. Many services, such as
municipal buildings, the City pool, multiple flushing events throughout the year, and fire
department training rnultiple times per week, are unmetered and account for a portion of
the unaccounted for water loss. Although the City purportedly maintains good pressures
in the distribution system, the areas at the PRVs are set to the mjnimum allorved 20
psi prior to reaching the northern ends of the City with pressures nearly exceeding 1 50
psi such as at the City's WWTP. The prior storage tank has been decommissioned for
years, and therefore, the City relies on pumps and the clearwell to provide adequate fire
protection and high flow volumes. Other issues seen within the system are asbestos
concrete pipes, multiple areas with large amounts <lf water breaks, water laws that require
a service owner to be responsible for all work frorn the connection point (i.e. at the
main), estimated ttnaccounted-for/lost water (and lost revenues) of an estirnate d70o/o....
.....continued.....

H U l\ T 
'NGTNTTRS 

r AR*rrrF.crs r suRVEyoRs
55



.....limited valving on the transmission main along Transit Road and throughout the systern, and lack of rnetering within the system.

Execution of the Water System Infrastructure Plan assessment, prioritized project recommendations based on data analysis, testiug,
and modeling, review ojihe City's water policies and regulations, and pot.ntial funding opportunities and solicitation #iil iequirellos.
coordination between the HUNT team,the City Engineering ofice, and the Ciry DPW This close working relationship will gieatly
benefit the development of a visiou for the entire systlm and then prioritize individual projects to lay out i timeline toiecurJfunding
and tackle these islues. Execution and completiori of this study requires strong hydrologic understanding, technical and operational
skills to assess water system ueeds, thorough understanding ofcurrent and future regulitory requirements, and experience with water
system_ financing, all while having suflicient capacity to complete the tasks on time and within budget. The HUNT team possesses the
needed skill sets and availability, to successfully carry out the study. The team proposed the following aggressive scope of professional
services to assist the City of Lockport to successfully meet their goals.

Preliminary Data Gathering and Research

Prior to the initial kick-offmeeting with the City and the HUNT team, HUNT shall review initial information provided by the City.
fhis initial review will proactively guide the discussion of the kick-offmeeting, The information to be reviewed shall consist of any
water record mapping, GIS data, DOH annual inspection reports, and initial billing records of the lowest and highest consumption
users.

Kick OffMeeting, Data Gathering & Project Planning
A kick-offmeeting will be held between HUNT and key individuals representing the City to establish shared goals and expectations
for the overall Master Water Infrastructure Plan. The meeting will be designed to introduce the project team, establish lines of
communication,review project scope and schedule, complete the preliminary data review findings , discuss and docurnent the City's
expectations, and collaboratively develop a definition of success with respect to this project. HUNT shall develop a meeting agenda
and submit it to attendees prior to the rneeting along with follow up meeting minutes.

At the kick-offmeeting,_HUNT shall develop a list of additional needed data (i.e., material standardization resolutions, any available
engineering drawings of past projects in the project area, etc.), discuss implications of the lead and copper rule with respect to the water
infrastructure plan improvement project(s) and the need to document water system materials, etc. We will also establish clata gatherilg
assistance that is available to the HUNT team by the City (i.e. potential hydrant flow testing, c-factor testing, etc.).

In-Depth Data Gathering, Needs Assessment, and Analysis
Following the kick-off meeting and after the scope is fully agreed upon, HUNT shall complete a more in-depth evaluation of the
mapping of the existing watermain to develop highJevel priority areas within the City to investigate with greater efforts. These efforts
will take 

-on 
a varietl'of forms including visiting the r,r'ater system to become more familiar with it throughout the City, an extensive

review of the GIS data and all available files fi'om the City Water Department (mapping, water production records, biiling records,

IYSD_OH annual insptction reports, etc.), and concluct field evaluations with City staffto confirm record mapping and GIS duta.
HUNT plans on spending ample time in the field with qualified individuals to inspect the various systern componints and assess their
condition.

H U N T rNGrNnnRs r 

^RcHrrncrs 
r suRVEyoRs

56
Project Approach



Other data gathering will include items such as the aforementioned hydrant flow testing, leak detection investigation (assuming the
City can assist, otherwise HUNT can solicit a subcontractor for this work at an added cost), selective meter placements and/or pressure
logging (to identify residual pressures during normal working conditions and in critical areas during simulated fire flow conditions),
and establishing and sending a water district-wide questionnaire with pointed questions to the consumers regarding items such as
pressure issues, aesthetic issues (odor, taste, color), etc. to continue establish areas ofgreater focus.

IIUNT will solicit input from the local health department to review and discuss previous findings in past annual inspections and
anticipated future regulatory changes. HUNT will evaluate the water system components with respect to regulatory compliance
(compliance with Recommended Standards for Water Works, i.e. Ten States Standards) including configuration and capaiity. Capacity
evaluations will be rnade on the clearwell storage (and lack of tankagc), and the distribution system. Review of the City's water la-ws
and regulations will be conducted at this same time. This regulatory compliance inspection and assessment shall be documented and
results included in the pending Master Infrastructure Plan.

Gathered information (such as pipe diameters, pipe interior conditions (based upon age), ground elevations, etc.) will be analyzed and
incorporated into an updated GIS system that is compatible with the City's capabilities, and the information will be utilized create a
hydraulic water model in InfoWater, The model shall be capable of identifying flows and pressures throughout various operational
conditions. The ability to provide adequate flows and pressures will directly impact greater water system improvement and pipe
replacements.

HUNT will work with the City to complete an asset management plan to identify needs based upon age, component conditions,
regulatory compliance, etc. This evaluation shall extend to all water distribution system components and review its functionaliry age,
expected useful life, and ability to meet current regulatory requirements. The evaluation shall include storage, residuals in the system,
valves, piping,?umps, prv's, hydrants, and meters. The existing City meters are aged and likely unable to record adequate water usage
for accurate billing Purposes. Therefore, it is important to conduct a complete water system distribution asset management plan
for identification of annual savings necessary to maintain short lived assets and ensure future system solvency. This annual iavings
requirement shall be reviewed with respect to the current budget and rate structure.

Follow Up Meetings and Project Management
HUNT shall continuously involve the City throughout the process at regular intervals to ensure the project success laid out in the kick-
offmeeting is upheld and that it stays on track with the defined schedule. Any updates to the schedule or timing of analysis will be
easily addressed through constant communication.

Analysis, Recommendations, and Costs
HUNT shall review all gathered data, questionnaire, in-field work, and modeling information to provide the City with recommended
projects and provide cost estimates to prioritize projects based on feasibility and long-term planning. These recommendations may
consist of a master meter replacement program, selective water main replacements, valving, etc. These recommended improvements
will be outline in a timetable with the City to best approach potential funding/grant opportunities to assist the City in proactively
upgrading its water infrastructure instead of reacting to the issues at hand.

H U N T tNGINTnRS r 

^RCHrrEcrs 
r suRv.yoRs

57
Lockport Project Approach



The final report to the City r,r'ill be a culmination of the collaboration between the HUNT team and the City throughout the entirety
of the project. The report will be in a format that best outiines the Master Infrastructure PIan with the overall asseisments of the
system, recomtnended improvements through the asset management and short- and long-term efforts and costs, review and suggest if
necessary improvements to the water policies and regulations, potential funding sources with a schedule outline for applying for these
opportunities, and detailed irnplementation plan for achieving the City's goals.

Quality Control
HUNT's emphasis on quality control is intrinsic to our daily operations. The success of our firm is directly related to the quality and
accuracy_ of our documents, and we take careful measures to ensure that our product meets, and rnore often exceeds, quality standards.
During the design process, our documents are scrutinized during a series of ongoing coordination reviews by the design team. The
multi-discipline nature of HUNT project tearns provides ample opportunity for documents to be reviewed by colleaguis as the project
progresses through the phases of design. Frequent meetings with the client provides another forum for review of thi construction
documents. HUNT has an outstanding reputation for the quality of our construction documents. This thorough documentation will
result in reduced cost to the City.

SANITARY SEWER COLTECTION SYSTEM STUDY
The City of Lockport's sanitary sewer collection system comprises of 70o/o combined sanitary and storm sewers and includes ten ( 10)
a_ctive, permitted combined sewer overflow (CSO) discharges. The system faces unique challenges including original stone interceptors
that are susceptible to erosive undermining resulting in sinkholes, significant inflow and infiltration (I&I) from the combined system
Ieading to increased operations and maintenance (O&M) costs at the WWTF and throughout the system, as well as rapid elevation
changes throughout the system causing overflowing manholes and generally deep infrastructure with drop rnanholes of over 30 feet
leading to foreseeable construction challenges.

The Sewer Master Infrastructure Plan will be developed with the objective of being proactive towards achieving long-term solutions,
This includes a timeline for purstring grant and funding opportunities; therefore, the efforts in developing the Master Plans rvill be able
to be used towards the grant and funding application process.

HUNT will work with the City to develop a vision for the entire system and tiren prioritize individual projects to lay out a timeline to
secure funding and tackle these issues. HUNT will perform a preliminary analysis of existing information prior to ihe kick-offmeeting
with the City to then develop highJevel priorities. Following this kick-offmeeting and additional information gathering, Hunt will
perform an extensive analysis of existing information including record information, GIS models, flow data, televised sewer sections,
sewer policy and regulations, etc. Hunt will then provide recommendations for prioritized projects and engineering solutions including
cost estimates, timelines for securing funding and developing the design, regulatory, bidding, and construction schidules. This process
will be a team-based approach with continued communication with the City as well as an iterative process to arrive at optimal sblutions
both in terms of feasibility and long-term planning solutions.

Preliminary Data Gathering and Research
Prior to the initial kick-offmeeting with the City and the HUNT team, HUNT shall review initial information provided by the City.
This initial revierv rvill-proactive_ly guide the discussion of the kick-off meeting, The information to be reviewed shall coniist of any
record mapping, GIS data, overflow discharge records, sewer policy, and initial billing records of the lowest and highest consumption
users, etc.

Kick-offMeeting & Data Gathering
At this kick offm-eeting, the City and HUNT will discuss the challenges faced with the sanitary sewer and storm sewer systems
including past efforts, knoyn sources of I&I, and problem areas. The discussions will include expectations with respect to addressing
these concerns. Additionally, HUNT will collect any further data that is relevant to complete a thorough analysis.

It is impr:rtant to utilize the grant funding ef{iciently in order to identi$ sources of I&I, review potential solutions, identify a viable
capital irnprovement plan. The objective is to identify feasible projects to address challenges and then lay out a tirneline with the
funding cycles to accomplish these agreed upon solutions.

H U N T rNGrNnnRs r ARcHrrDcrs r suRVEyoRs
58

Lockport Project Approach



HUNT shall establish and review in detail, the investigative approach, schedule, report development process, and review period. The
goal in developing these deliverables is to utilize these efForts for future grant or funding oppor:tunities

In-Depth Data Gathering Analysis, and Modelling
Following the comprehensive data collection, HUNT will perform an extensive desktop review including an update to the GIS system
based on record information and City staffknowledge. Modelling efforts as outlined below will be used io identify potential projecft.

1. HUNT will obtain all existing GIS rnapping as a geodatabase (or other acceptable file rype) from the City of Loclgort. GIS staffat
HqNT will r',lilize the geodatabase, to develop a sanitary sewer model in InfoSWMM, an ATcGIS based sewer modeling program.
2. HUNT will obtain all existing water usage data for the users within the sewer district. Generally, we request two to t[iee fears of
quarterly usage reports to- establish trends in usage and develop an appropriate average daily flow rate based on use type (i.e., single-
farnily residential, multi-family, cornmercial). If water usage data is unavailable for particular users or locations, statibiical analyJis of
available water usage coupled with industry standards will be utilized to determine water usage in these instances.
3. Other miscellaneous information will be obtained if available, including but not limited to, storm sewer mapping, groundwater
monitoring wells, sewer inspection reports, pump station information, etc.
4. Upon,completion of the, data gathering period, HUNT will review with the City all data and revisit the project approach to ensure all
goals and expectations are being met.

HUNT will review the conditions of the sewer infrastructure including piltes, pumps, valves, and other coffiponents including the following
eforts:

l. AnaLyze system hydraulics by developing system curves.
2. Analyze pump hydraulics and optimal operation points as indicated by pump curves.
3. Calculate pump capacities and operating ranges to evaluate current and future demand requirements.
4. Evaluate energy usage and make recommendations for efficiencies.
5. Evaluate compliance with state and federal regulations.
6. Assess the condition of pumps and valves and estimate costs for recommended alternatives.

HUNT will review the City's sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with state and federal regulations as well as make
suggestions for effi ciency improvements.

FlowMonitoring and Additional Data Gathering Efforts (If Needed)
HUNT staf shall work with,City of Loc\port staff to recommend potential meter locations within the study area and outline resulting
sewersheds. The selection of a metering manhole is often the most critical component in flow monitoring, as poor flow regimens, pipi
obstructions, and other intrusions can impact the abiliry of the flow meter to accurately and continuously meier flow. OnJe metering
manholes are agreed upon, HUNT will install the appropriate flow meter (arealvelocity meter, level sensors, or a combination) and
setup rain gauges throughout the City of Loclgort Sanitary Sewer System. Concurrently to flow meter installation and start-up, HUNT
will work with the City to begin collecting additional data.

These eforts are not included in HUNTI scope; though HIJNT will assist in quoting and securing contractors to accomplish these eforts for
the City. In general, this portion of the project will consist of the following:
Select metering manhole locations and install appropriate flow metering equiprnent. Set-up rain gauges throughout the system as
necessary to capture representative rainfall for the flow monitoring period,

Inflow & Infiltration Analysis
Once the modei has been completed, HUNT will utilize historical rainfall data and flow data including WWTF influent flow data, CSO
discharge data, and any metering data if provided or collected, see above, to develop a model to quantify lll. HUNT will analyze the
model to quantify groundwater infiltration and rainfoll derived infiltration and inflow asfollows:

l. Review all rainfall data and interpolate rainfall data across the Sewer System to establish accurate rainfall volumes for each
sewershed.

H U N T TNGTNDTRs r ARcHrrF.crs r suRvEyoRs
59

Lockport Project Approach



2. For each sewershed, the flow data will be evaluated to calculate the following:
A. Averagg Dry Weather Flow - Average flow during a period of dry weather with seasonal high groundwater
B. Groundwater Infiltration - FIow rate during periods of lolv water usage (i.e., nighttime flows) 

-
C. Base Sanitary Flow Rate - The portion of the flow rate generated from users wiihin the sewer district
D. Inflow - Inflow rates and volumes following storm events (included direct and delayed inflow)

3. Sewershed sizes will be calculated in terms of equivalent length of pipe (inch-diameter.mile), and an infiltration rate per equivalelt
Iength of pipe will be calculated for each sewershed. This metric will be compared against industry standards for acceptible infiltration
rates. The sewershed's will be prioritized based upon infiltration rate, to help the City focus improvement efforts accoidingly.

4. For certain storm events, inflow peaking factors will be established. Inflow peaking factors are the ratio ofpeak irrflow to average
dry weather flow and can b-e cornpared against anticipated peaking factors for domesiic and commercial water usage diurnal flow
Patterns. C-omparing actual and_anticipated peaking factors, can help determine a sewershedt response to storms of varying intensities.
Additionally, peaking factors will be utilized to prioritize inflow iraprovement eiTorts for each sewlrshed location.

5. Utilizing InfoSWMM, HUNT will calibrate the flow data to the water usage data, to establish a base sanitary sewer model. From
the base model, HUNT will develop 

-a 
capacity analysis of the system during various simulated storm events (i.e.,2-yr,S-yr,25-yr

storms). These efforts will further help the City predict and understand each sewershed's response to wet weather due to iainfali derived
infiltration and inflow. This model will then be utilized to recommend and prioritize project.s.

Develop Preliminary Recommendations
IIUNT will develop a list of recommended projects and providecost estimates to prioritize based on feasibility and long-term planning.
These recommended projects may include separating sections of combined sewerinto separate storm and rutritury r.wJrs, repair/
re_-lining of sewer sections, or complete rebuild and/or upsizing of pipes. Through this process, it may be necessary to perform sewer
televising and snroke testing to confirm the conditions of the existing system.

These eforts are not included in HUNT\ scope; though HIINT will assist in quoting and securing contractors to accomplish these eforts Jor
the City. In general, this portion of the project will consist of the following:
Requesting proposals for smoke testing and televising sanitary sewer mains including cleaning efforts if needed. Deliverables to include
a televising log, report, and videos.

Follow-up Meeting
HUNT will meet with the City to confirm agreement with analysis and modelling efforts and to discuss the preliminary
recommendations. This disclssionrvill be supported by the cost estimates and determinations of feasibility garnered by the
eforts discussed above. HUNT will work with the City to ensure that the correct priorities and timelines 

".Jb.ing 
mei by these

recommendations.

Develop Report
HUNT will develop a report with the objective of prioritizing projects for long-term planning. In addition to the efforts as outlined
above, the report analysis will include:
. A comprehensive assessment of the condition of the existing sewer infrastructure, including pipes, pumps, valves, and other
components u.ith a
. An evaluation of the capacity of the existing sewer systems to meet current and future demand.
. An analysis of the Cityt sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with state and federal regulations.
. Identification ofareas ofconcern, such as areas with high levels I/I and sewer backups, and an analysii ofthe causes ofthese issues.. Cost estimates for recommended alternatives.
. Identification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements.

Team Meetings and Finalization Meeting
HyNT will be prepared to attend team meetings as requested by the City to discuss project progress, lindings, data, or any other topic
related to the Master Infrastructure llan s-!udy. Certain sections of the Plan report will be viua6le when applying for grant funding
for the recommended projects. HUNT will review the final product with the City to ensure that all deliverablis 

"ie 
tttJt to the Cityi

standards.

H U N T TNGTNDnRs r ARcHrr'crs r suRvF.yoRs
60 Loc$ort Project Approach



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

H U N T rNGrNrrRs I AR.rr'f f.crs r suRVryoRS
61



Fee Schedule
Our general scope above is broken out in the following fee schedule to accommodate the Scope format as described within the RFP as
follows:

i. Preliminary Data Gathering and Research $15,000

2. Kickoff and Follow Up Meetings $7,200

3. Analysis & Recommendations / Pennit/Costs $85,000

4. Development of Report $55,000

TOTAT $l65,000.00

Items of Exclusion

Further information may be required to develop recomrnendations. This quote does not include the costs for additional data gathering
including smoke testing and televising sections of sanitary sewer or services required for flow testing, metering, or pressure teiting
water mains. HUNT will provide assistance to quote these services, but the cost of these services is not included in the above fee.

Schedule

Our estimated schedule based trpon the items within the Scope (and assuming the City awards the contract at their 6/28/23 meeting) are as

follows:

Preliminary Data Gathering & Research - fuly 3, 2023 -luly 21,2023

Kickof Meeting - Week of fuly 24,2023

Research/Modelling/Cost Estirnation & Develop Initial Recomrnendations* - fuly 31, 2023 - October 27,2023

Follow-Up Meeting - Week of Octobet 30,2023

Analysis and Final Recommendations - November 6,2023 - lanuary 26,2024

Finalization Meeting - Week of fanuary 29,2024

Development of Report - February 5,2024 - April 26,2024

(To meet 2024 funding rounds)

*May require additional data gathering see ltems of Exclusion section above

H U N T rNGrNnrRs r ARcHrrncrs r suRVEyoRs Lockport Fees



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

H U N T TNGTN-DriRS r ARCrr.'rcrs r suRvryoRs
63



Rita Y. McCarthy, Town Manager
Town of Erwin ''
310 Town Center Road - 2nd Floor
Painted Post, NY 14870
phone: 607.962.7A21
e-mail: lbwnManager@ErwinNY. org

Anthony I. Bates, Clerk Treasurer-Village Manager
Village of Endicott
1009 East Main Street
Endicott, NY 13760
phone: 607.757.5337
e -mail: ABates@EndicottNY.com

Michael Quinn, PE, Sr. Distribution Engineer
Erie CountyWater Authority (ECWA)
295 Main Street, Room 350
Buffalo, NY 14203
phone: 000.000.0000
e-mail: MQuinn@ECWA.org

Shawn Crater, Water System Supervisor
Town of Big Flats
476 Maple St
Big Flars, NY 14814
phone: 607J52.7063
e-mail: SCrater@BigFlatsNYgov

H U NTtNGrNnnRs r ARcHrrncrs rsuRVEyoRs
63

References



3

NIAGARA COUNTY
COUNTY CLERK'S OFF'ICE
COURTHOUSE
P.O. BOX 461
LOCKPORT, NY 14095-0461

JOSEPHA. TASTRZEMSKI
County Clerk

MATTHEW L. PARISH
First Deputy County Clerk

(716) 4s9-7022
(716\ 439-7035 Fax

To: The Honorable Mark Devine

From: Niagara County Clerk

Subject: Resolution Request

Dear Alderman Devine,

Niagara County is having a Purple Heart monument dedication service along with our annual Purple

Heart award ceremony on August 6,2023 at 12:00.

We would like to request that you sponsor a resolution for the following:

L. That Niagara St. be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Prospect St.

to Hawley St.

2. That Hawley St. be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Niagara St.

to Park Ave.

3. That Park Ave be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Prospect St. to
the Navy Marine Club parking lot. (To include the parking lot entrance.)

4. lf able, the County would like to know if the City could provide eight set of bleachers for guests

who attend the event.

5. lf able, the County would like to know if the city could provide two officers for traffic control at
the beginning of the event and at the end of the event. We are also asking the Niagara County
Sheriff to provide building security as well as traffic control.

Thank you for any assistance the city of Lockport can provide.

Joseph A. J

Niagara County Clerk



062623.10

By Alderman Devine:

Whereas that pursuant to their request, the Niagara County Clerk's Office is
hereby granted permission to host their Purple Heart Award Ceremony and dedication
service, in honor of the distinguished members of the United States Armed Forces who
were wounded or killed in action. Said event shall take place on August 6,2023 at 12
noon; and

Whereas a formal Purple Heart ceremony provides an opportunity to express our
gratitude, and to pay tribute to their service, and offer support to Purple Herat recipients
and their families;

Now therefore it be resolved:

1. Niagara Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Prospect St to Hawley Street

2. That Hawley Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Niagara Street to Park Avenue

3. That Park Avenue shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Prospect Street to the Navy Marine Club parking lot

4. The City shall provide eight sets of bleachers for guests who attend the event
5. The City shall provide two City of Lockport Police Officers for help with traffic

control at the beginning and end of the event; and it is further

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is hereby
authorized and directed to arrange for delivery of barricades and bleachers to said area
prior to said event.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes



t4

Deputv Citv Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

See below

From: Kristen Kress <kreshal19@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 79,202310:15 AM
To: cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

Yes on cottage st thank you very much
On Wed, Jul 19, 2023 at 10:13 AM <cityclerk(0.lock wrote:

Kristen,

Just to clarify:

Block Party - August 12th

Noon - I pm.

Reguesf to close Cottage street from Legrange to High Sfreef

Alderman Fogle has offered to Sponsor-

ls there anything that I am missing?

From: Kristen Kress <kreshal19@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July !9,2023 9:55 AM
To: citvclerk@ lockportny.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

cityclerk@ lockpo rtny.gov
Wednesday, July 19, 202310:17 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'
FW: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

1



Ok, thank you.

On Tue, Jul 18, 2023 at 5:06 PM <cityclerk@lockpoftny wrote:

You will receive a notification the day after the meeting - Juty 2vh

From: Kristen Kress <kreshall9@email.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 18,2023 5:06 PM
To: citvclerk@ lockportnv.eov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

ok will I get a confirmation ? I just wanted to be sure before I pass the flyers

On Tue, Jul 18, 2023 at 5:04 PM <cityclerk@lockeorfny.gp wrote:

Kristen,

Thank you - I will add for the July 2}th meeting!

Sarah

From: Kristen Kress <!rcShgll9@smAjl.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July !8,2023 5:02 PM
To: citvclerk@ lockportnv.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

They both replied that they would sponsor and said they would ask the clerk to put on the agenda June26th

2



(',

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

AgendaDescription;LOCkfeSt-MUS|C and ArtS fOr the WhOle Family!

Presented By, LOCkpOft Main Stfeet lo""
submitted:/ 11912023

Topic Area {Select Most Applicable Option):

Community Event

Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

,/ Local Law Change

Community Development
Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

Please prcvide to Clerk ot teast I colenddr days ptiot to Caunctt meetlng. Athe,wise request wtll ga to lotlowhg meetlng,

! The event will include

LMS requests permission to close Main Street be closed to through traffic from Cottage to Pine Street for the duration of the event
LMS requisition permission to place portable sanitation units on Main Street for this event
LMS requests the Director of Streets and Parks to arrange to deliver refuse containers to the area prior to Sunday, August 27th.
LMS requests to have access to the electricity available at the light posts along Main Street.
LMS Permission for vendors and restaurants to set up and serve at the event,
Requests the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is permit delivery and pick-up of '10 City barricades and 6 trash
receptacles.
LMS will submit a certificate of insurance with the City clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured. LMS will adhere to any and all
Elecutive-Orders by the New York State Governor, and any and all Local Laws and Regulations, with regard to social distancing and
COVID-19 regulations during the operation of these events.

Explanation of Attachments:

The map indicates the event layout. Lockport Main Street will submit a certificate of
insurance naming the City of Lockport as additionally insured for this event.

Please include all backup correspondence, purchase order, quotes, meeting minutes, emails, etc... tf any ol this information is contiJeniiii inU cannot
be released publicallV, please denote a check in this field: _

Cl erk/ Leg o l/F i na nce App roval :
Notes,

Name:
lort" 

ot Approvat:





7

Whereas, General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on
them by the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Sunrise Optimists for a donation of $600 to be used for Family Fun
Night on August 11,2023; and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
A.8510.32705 Gifts and Donation $6oo

Expenditures
lncrease
A.8510.54515 Special Supplies $600



6

Whereas, General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on
them by the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Rotary Club of Lockport for a donation of $32,913 to be used for a
pavilion to be used in the Lower Town Loop / Market Street Bathroom (under NASPO
contract 10700-15856); and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
4.7110.32705 Gifts and Donation $32,913

Expenditures
lncrease
4.7110.52025 Building and Grounds Equipment $32,913



I
Proposal #:
Date:

37238.R3 - 108518 01 02
06/30/2023 RCP Sue rrERS, lNc.

Pnoposn/OnoER Fonvr
City of Lockport
Attn: Steve Pump
I Locks Plaza
Lockpoft, NY 14094

2100 SE Rays Way r Stuart, FL34994
P: 800-525-0207 . 772-288-3600
F:772-288-0207
info@rcpshelters.com . http://www.rcpshelters.com

Phonel

E-mail:

7L6-439-67s8

spump@lockportnV.gov
Prepared by: Linda Culliton/hd

lculliton@mrcrec.com

New York State Contract PC 678?4 Canal Shelter - Lockport, Ny

INctUDED

r NY Cert Drawings: includes standard RCp foundation design
r Frame: powder coated tube steel
r Roof Deck: exposed fastener metal roofing (see specs)
r Anchor bolts and templates
r Electrical provisioning (see page 2)
r Hardware: all required fasteners
r Delivery: to an accessible site

NoT INCLUDED

r Unloading
r Concrete
r Concrete embedment (wire mesh, rebar, etc.)
r Rails/ornamentation/benches/cupola
r lnstallation
; Anything not specifically listed os "lncluded"

PRICING NOTES (RCP reserves the right to requote if:)
r Quote is older than 30 days
r Purchaser drawing approval exceeds 30 days
r Purchaser delays original ship date 30+ days
r Pro ect location snow load exceeds 50

(PrinVTitle)

Signature confirms acceptdnce of all poges of this proposal.

Page

A 1.00
Model#: TS-G2040-04
20' x 40'Steel Gable Shelter

Original price

s36,570.00
Discounted

price

Srz,gra.oo

FREIGHT
Pooled freight rate delivered to an accessible site. Upgrade to dedicated truck or split shipment
is available upon request at an additional fee. Refer to notes on page 2 for more details.

lncluded

Snlrs Tnx
CA or FL sales tax to be added unless tax exemption is provided.
For all other states, purchaser is responsible for sales tax to appropriate authorities.

ToTAt Total of ltem(s) and option(s) selected and freight (if applicable)

ITEM Qw DrscRrpnonr PRICE

TERMS & CoNDITIoNS PLEASE REMIT PAYMENTTo MRc Po Box
106 SPRING LAKE, NJ 07752
r Orders not subject to cancellation
r 30% deposit due with order
r Balance due prior to shipment

o Net 30 available with approved credit (check only)
r 3% discount for payment in full with order (check onty)

DIREGT PO To RCP FRoM GoVERNMENT AGENCIES
r Net 30
r l-% discount net 10
rno ired

(Signature) (Date)
7/3



RCP SHrrruns, lNc.
Fnorosn/Onnun Fcnru {Corurrruuru}

Proposal #: 37238.R3

2100 SE Rays Way o Stuart, FL 34994
P: 800-525-0207 . 772-288-3600
F:772-288-0207
info@ rcpshelters.com . http://www.rcpshelters.com

City of Lockport - Lockport, NY

Drsreru / Eruerruernrrue

r Proposal based on design by RCP Shelters, not necessarily an exact match to bid or architectural drawings.
r RCP value engineers for minimum number of columns to keep the pavilion as open and accessible as possible. Final design may

not reflect the same number of columns or members, sizes, or spacing as images on RCP's website and catalog or preliminary
drawing.

: Drawing lead times vary significantly based on design simplicity/complexity, seasonal demand, and current order backlog.
r DesignrequirementsnotdisclosedtoRCPpriortoproposal orrequiredrevisionsresultingfrominformationnotdisclosedattime

of order are subject to additional charge. Common examples:
o All pertinent foundation information, including but not limited to geotechnical report, maximum depth for water table, or

installations near or connection to other structures (drift snow loads), or any other site-specific request/requirement must be
provided with order. Without this information, RCP reserves the right to requote or charge additional engineering fee.

o Proposal includes standard foundation based on assumed soil values (minimum 2' diameter & 4' deep - can be much larger
depending on loading conditions and size of structure). Foundations may be designed by others with RCp provided column
base reactions. Custom foundation designs may be available for additional fee,

o Electrical or other custom cutouts not specifically included in the proposal are subject to additional engineering, drafting, and
fabrication fees.

* Local code may have requirements that are not the responsibility of RCP (examples: NJ architectural stamp, FL fire barrier board).
r Each project is designed for its specific location after receipt of order, Occasionally, engineering determines that materials not

included in the proposal are required. Such materials shall be provided by others (example: OSB diaphragm is sometimes required
on larger LW-G and bandshell models).

r Drawings provided by RCP Shelters with this proposal are preliminary and are not for construction. Owner can pre-purchase
engineered drawings, which detail the project specific foundation design and material requirements, with no obligation to
purchase the entire structure.

FasRtcnfloN / SHrpplNe DrrAs
r Fabrication lead times vary based on seasonal demand and current order backlog.
r Freight price is based on pooled loads.
r Upgrade to dedicated truck or split shipment is available for an additional fee.
* Shipping dates are not guaranteed. RcP does not accept orders with penalties or contingent liability.
r Trucking will call at least 24 hours prior to delivery to coordinate.
I Unloading by others. RCP recommends non-marring padded slings and padded forks for offloading. Block all materials off ground

and cover with moisture resistant paper until installation.

ELEcTRIcAt PROVISIONING. IF CHOSEN. IS DEFINED AS:

. Custom electrical requirements may add weeks to the lead time for drawing submittals
o I1/2" conduit access holes in base plates of steel columns
r 1" conduit access holes through steel frame to fixture locations
r 1" conduit access holes in steel beams at fixture locations (lights, fans, etc.)
r Up to 1 switch cutout per steel column, 48" from finish floor, 2%t" x3 Tr"
r Up to 1 receptacle cutout per steel column, 18" from finish floor, 2%" x3/2"

PRoPoSAL NorEs & DETAItS

(Signature) (Print/Title)

Signdture confirms acceptance of all pages of this proposal.

(Date)
Page

2/3



TrcH N ICAL SprcI rI cATIoNS

Proposal #: 37238.R3

Desrcrv CRttsRra

Structure shall be designed to be free standing, open air pavilion in conformance with all applicable building code
Manufactured by RCP Shelters: 2100 SE Rays Way, Stuart, FL 34994. Toll-free: 8OO-525-OZO7 . F:772-288-0207 .
http://www.rcpshelters.com . info@rcpshelters.com.

ll. Scopr

Structure shall be an all steel pavilion over a 4" minimum thickness reinforced concrete slab. Pavilion shall have a clear space,
without a center column or open knee bracing. Structure shall be designed by professional engineers. The owner or contractor
shall be responsible for unloading, temporary storage, soil testing (if necessary), site preparation, concrete slab, and erection of
structures. Owner or contractor is responsible for protection of materials after arrival.

lll. Colunnrus

The pavilion shall be set on prepared footings. Foundation shall be engineered to manufacturer's design and constructed to
local code and good construction practices for the specific site conditions. The structure shall have tube steel corner columns.
The columns shall be attached to the top of the concrete foundation by use of anchor bolts, hidden when possible. Anchor bolts
shall be provided by owner or contractor so that foundations can be prepared and ready for installation upon delivery of the
pavilion' Alternatively, RCP Shelters offers an anchor bolt option, to be shipped upon receipt of drawing approval for
fa brication.

lV. FRAME

All structural framing of the pavilion shall be structural tube steel with end caps to form a clean, neat appearance with no place
for birds to nest or small animals to roost. The compression ring shall be structural steel plate. Since all connections will bolt
together, field welding shall not be required. Bolts shall be concealed within the tubing when possible.

V. PowoeR Coar Frrurss

The columns and frame shall be sandblasted to near-white condition, five stage washed, including detergent, phosphate, and
rust protectant sealant, epoxy primed, then top coated with TGIC powder. The columns and frame shall be packaged in foam,
cardboard, and stretch wrap to protect the finish during transit. The color shall be selected from manufacturer's standard color
chart. Field touch up painting shall be required by owner or contractor.

VI. EAVE & PITCH

Eave height shall be minimum 7'-6". Roof pitch shall be 4..!2

Vll. Roorrrue

The roof system shall be structural 24-gauge exposed fastener Galvalume@ panels with I%" high ribs,7.2" on center. Ribs shall
run with the pitch of the roof for proper drainage. Roof panels shall be 3' wide and precut by the length from the eave to the
ridge. Angles shall be factory precut. Matching roof trim & fasteners shall be supplied. Hip and ridge beams shall have cap
plates for metal deck bearing, as metal deck cannot structurally bear on beam corner only. Panels and trim shall be pre-painted
with the Kynar 500@ paint system. Color shall be chosen by owner from the standard color chart, provided upon request.

RCP Shelters, lnc. . 2100 SE Rays Way, Stuart, FL 34994
Toll Free 800-525-0207 ' Local772-288-3600. Fax 772-288-0207. info@rcpshelters.com . http://www.rcpshelters.com

Page

3/3



q

Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

cityclerk@ loc kportny.gov
Thursday, July 20,2023 10:18 AM
jzkaneS9@gmail.com

'Deputy City Clerk'
Tony Ventura Fundraiser

Good Morning Jimmy,

We spoke this morning about the following, and I am writing to ensure that I have
captured all of the details:

August 12, 2023
Time: 3PM-gPM
Fundraiser for Tony Ventura
Location: Short Sfreef

Resolution request to barricade Short Sfreef at the corner of Michigan from 3 pm - 9
pm

Please let me know if the above information is correct - and/or if we need to modify,
Thank you!
Sarah

Sarah K. Lanzo
City Clerk
Phone: (7L61439-6674
Fax: (716) 499-6702
cityclerk@ lockportny.gov

1


